
 
 
REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
MEETING 10.30 am WEDNESDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2025 
 
 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
 
MEMBERSHIP -  Councillor Tom Liddiard (Chair)  

Councillors Philip Lunn (Deputy Chair), Abul Azad, Godfrey Daniel, 
Kathryn Field, Eleanor Kirby-Green and Pat Rodohan 
 

 
A G E N D A  
 
1.   Minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2025  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
2.   Apologies for absence   

 
3.   Disclosures of interests   

Disclosures by all members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
4.   Urgent items   

Notification of items which the Chair considers to be urgent and proposes to take at the 
appropriate part of the agenda. Any members who wish to raise urgent items are asked, 
wherever possible, to notify the Chair before the start of the meeting. In so doing, they 
must state the special circumstances which they consider justify the matter being 
considered urgent. 

 
County Matter Proposals - report(s) by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport  
 
5.   Variation of Condition 3 of planning permission LW/799/CM(EIA) to extend the hours of 

working. Fisher's Wharf, East Quay, Newhaven Port, Newhaven BN9 0BN - 
LW/896/CM  (Pages 7 - 30) 
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport  
 

6.   Use of land for the importation, deposit, storage & processing for recycling and recovery 
of skip waste comprising construction, demolition and excavation waste, commercial 
and industrial, and household waste (part retrospective) including construction of new 
concrete hardstanding and storage bays. Hole Farm, Westfield Lane Westfield TN35 
4SA For EcoSkip Waste & Recycling Ltd - RR/899/CM  (Pages 31 - 58) 
Report by Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 

7.   Any other items previously notified under agenda item 4   
 

 
PHILIP BAKER 
Deputy Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent  
LEWES BN7 1UE 9 September 2025 



 

 
Contact Sophie Webb, Governance and Democracy Manager,  
01273 337495 
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 
NOTES: 

(1) Members are reminded that copies of all representations received are available for 
inspection in the Members’ Room 

(2)  As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, 
this meeting will be broadcast live on its website and the record archived. The live 
broadcast is accessible at: https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/videos-of-
council-meetings/webcasts 

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/videos-of-council-meetings/webcasts
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/videos-of-council-meetings/webcasts


 
 
 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Planning Committee held at Council Chamber, County Hall, 
Lewes on 16 July 2025. 
 

 
PRESENT  Councillors Tom Liddiard (Chair), Godfrey Daniel, Kathryn Field and Eleanor Kirby-
Green and Chris Dowling 
 

 
 
8. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 JUNE 2025  
 
8.1 The Committee approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 11 
June 2025. 
 
9. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
9.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Azad, Lunn and Rodohan. 
 
9.2 It was noted that Councillor Chris Dowling was in attendance as a substitute for 
Councillor Lunn. 
 
10. DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS  
 
10.1 Councillor Daniel declared a personal interest in items 5 and 6 as a holder of a blue 
badge. He did not consider this to be prejudicial. 
 
10.2 Councillor Dowling declared a personal interest as the spouse of Councillor Claire 
Dowling, the Lead Member for Transport and Environment. He did not consider this to be 
prejudicial.  
 
11. URGENT ITEMS  
 
11.1 There were none. 
 
12. REPORTS  
 
12.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 
 
13. EASTBOURNE TOWN CENTRE MOVEMENT AND ACCESS PACKAGE PHASE 2A 
TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER  
 
13.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport. 
 
13.2 Mr John Hudson and Ms Scarlett McNally spoke against the proposal and officer’s 
recommendations. 
 
13.3 Councillor Wright, a Local Member, spoke in support of the proposal and officer’s 
recommendations. 
 

ALSO PRESENT Councillors Adeniji, Beaver, Denis, Hollidge, Maples and Wright 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 

13.4 Committee Members have considered the report and comments of the public speakers 
and Local Member and agree with the conclusions and reasons for the recommendations as set 
out in the report. 
 
13.5 The Committee RESOLVED to: 
 
1) not uphold the objections to the draft Order as set out in Appendix 1 of the report; and 
 
2) recommend to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport that the Traffic 
Regulation Order, as advertised, be made in part. 
 
14. LEWES PARKING REVIEW 2 TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS  
 
14.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport. 
 
14.2 Mr Thomas Davenport spoke against the proposal and officer’s recommendation for Site 
4 Albion Street, Lewes. 
 
14.3 Mr Simon Goodman spoke against the proposal and officer’s recommendation for Site 9 
Blois Road and Crisp Road, Lewes. 
 
14.4 Ms Wendy Muriel spoke for the proposal and officer’s recommendation for Site 10 Old 
Malling Way, Lewes. 
 
14.5 The following Local Members spoke on the following sites detailed in the report: 
 

Site Location Local Member 

1 High Street, Lewes Councillor Denis 

2 Station Street, Lewes Councillor Denis 

3 Morris Road, Lewes Councillor Denis 

4 Albion Street, Lewes Councillor Denis 

5 Brook Street, Lewes Councillor Denis 

6 Court Road, Lewes Councillor Denis 

7 Grange Road, Lewes Councillor Maples 

8 Waldshut Road, Lewes Councillor Maples 

9 Blois Road and Crisp Road, Lewes Councillor Maples 

10 Old Malling Way, Lewes Councillor Denis 

11 Lee Road, Lewes Councillor Maples 

12 Sun Street, Lewes Councillor Denis 

13 East Street, Lewes Councillor Denis 

 
14.6 Motions to not uphold the objections for Site 1 (High Street, Lewes), Site 2 (Station 
Street, Lewes), Site 3 (Morris Road, Lewes), Site 4 (Albion Street, Lewes), Site 5 (Brook Street, 
Lewes), Site 6 (Court Road, Lewes) and Site 7 (Grange Road, Lewes) were proposed, 
seconded, voted on and won. 
 
14.7 Committee Members have considered the report, comments from public speakers and 
Local Members and agree with the conclusions and reasons for the recommendations as set 
out in the report with the exception of the Sites mentioned in Minute 14.6 above. 
 
14.8 The Committee RESOLVED to: 
 
1) Not uphold the objections to the draft order as set out in Appendix 1 of the report; 
 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

2) Not uphold the objections to the draft order as set out in Appendix 2 of the report; 
 
3) Not uphold the objections to the draft order as set out in Appendix 3 of the report; and 
 
4) Recommend to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport that the Traffic 
Regulation Order be made as advertised. 
 
 
 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 12.15 pm) CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Committee:  Regulatory  

Planning Committee 

 

Date: 17 September 2025 

 

Report by: Director of Communities Economy and Transport 

 

Proposal: Variation of Condition 3 of Planning Permission 

LW/799/CM(EIA) to extend the hours of working. 

 

Site Address: Fisher's Wharf, East Quay, Newhaven Port, Newhaven, 

East Sussex, BN9 0BN 

 

Applicant: Mr Richard Ford Brett Aggregates Limited 

 

Application No. LW/896/CM 

 

Key Issues: (i) Need for the proposal 

(ii) Noise  

(iii) Air quality 

(iv) Traffic 

(v) Impacts on nature conservation 

 

Contact Officer:     

 

Helen Ogden 01273 336532 

Local Member:  

    

Councillor James MacCleary 

 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

1. To grant planning permission subject to conditions as indicated 

in paragraph 8.1 of this report 

 

 

CONSIDERATION BY DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITIES ECONOMY AND 

TRANSPORT 

 

1. The Site and Surroundings 

 

1.1 The applicant operates an aggregates processing facility at Newhaven 

Port, which is owned by Newhaven Port Properties Ltd. The operation of the 

facility involves the importation of marine aggregates by ship, which are then 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



processed, stored and transferred by road and rail. The affected area 

comprises land at Fisher’s Wharf at East Quay, adjoining the River Ouse. The 

site extends from the river’s edge, through a quadrant, bounded to the south by 

rail sidings, towards a rectangular shaped plot that extends from Mill Creek in 

the north, to the East Beach in the south.  

 

1.2 Adjacent to the site lies an area of open beach and the Tide Mills Local 

Wildlife Site to the south and east. To the south-west the East Pier extends into 

the sea at the mouth of the Port. The South Downs National Park boundary lies 

to the east and north-east, approximately 200 metres and 400 metres away, 

respectively. The Newhaven 7b public footpath runs directly along the eastern 

boundary of the site.  

 

1.3 The nearest residential properties are on the same side of the river and 

are located on Railway Road, Clifton Road and Beach Road.  The 

predominantly residential areas of Bishopstone and the western outskirts of 

Seaford are about 1 kilometre to the east and Denton in Newhaven, is 

approximately 1.5 kilometres to the north. To the west of the River Ouse, the 

area is more densely populated than in the east. Residential properties, some 

of which are multi-storey apartment blocks, stand close to the river and the 

closest properties are on Fort Road near The Hope Inn, some 250 metres from 

the site. Newhaven Marina is within the river some 200 metres north of The 

Hope Inn and is accessed from the west bank. North of the marina, towards the 

A259, the Port’s fishing vessels operate. About 400 metres south-west of the 

site on land overlooking the Port is Newhaven Fort which is a Scheduled 

Ancient Monument. An Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) is present about 

1 kilometre to the north-west of the site, which covers the A259 one-way system 

around the town centre. 

 

1.4 Other commercial and industrial activities take place within the Port, 

which operates on a continual year-round basis. To the north of the application 

site is a tidal waterbody known as Mill Creek, which separates the site from the 

Brighton to Seaford railway line and other industrial and commercial 

development.  

 

1.5 Imported sea dredged sand and gravel is currently discharged from 

ships onto the quayside at East Quay, where it is then transported by conveyor 

to an existing aggregates processing plant. From there, the raw material is 

sorted into various sizes and grades of aggregate ready for distribution from 

site via Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV’S) or by train. Part of the processed 

aggregate is used for the production of ready mixed concrete on site, whilst the 

remainder is transferred to an independent bagging company for onward 

distribution by HGVs.  

  

Page 8



1.6 The main access is gained from the A259 and onto the relatively recently 

opened Newhaven Port Access Road to the east. The application site consists 

of two areas, one within the applicant’s existing aggregate processing facility 

and the other adjoining the site on its eastern side. The two areas amount to 

0.12ha. 

 

2. The Proposal 

 

2.1 The proposal is for the variation of Condition 3 of Planning Permission 

LW/799/CM(EIA), which currently reads: The site shall not be used for the 

development hereby permitted other than between the hours of 07.00 - 18.00 

on Mondays to Fridays inclusive and 07.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays, except for the 

loading of train wagons with aggregate material, which shall take place between 

the hours of 06.00 - 20.00 on Mondays to Saturdays inclusive, excluding on 

Bank and Public Holidays. There shall be no activities outside these times 

except in an emergency or unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Director 

of Communities, Economy and Transport. 

 

2.2 The proposal relates solely to stage 1 of the original development of the 

site under extant permission LW/799/CM(EIA), which involved the importation 

of unprocessed marine dredged sand and gravel and subsequent off-loading 

and processing to produce construction aggregates, distribution by road and 

rail. The infrastructure of relevance within this part of the site consists of: water 

holding tanks and silt recovery; an aggregate processing plant equipped with 

feed hopper, conveyors, and washing, screening, crushing and sand 

dewatering plant and aggregate storage bays formed from precast concrete 

wall segments secured to the ground.  

 

2.3 The proposal is to extend the hours of working from 07:00 -18:00 on 

Mondays to Fridays to 07:00-20:00, and from 07:00-13:00 on Saturdays to 

07:00 – 17:00 for processing activities only. There are no proposed changes to 

the hours in which the loading of train wagons with aggregate material will take 

place, nor are there any proposed change to works taking place on Sundays or 

Public Bank Holidays, which will remain unpermitted.  

 

2.4  The applicant has indicated that the current permitted hours of operation 

are too restrictive and as such, are hindering the supply of aggregates to the 

market, which is understood to be increasing in demand. The Supporting 

Statement submitted notes that without any new allocations for land won sand 

and gravel reserves within East Sussex, there is an increasing reliance on 

imported resources within the Plan area. This is covered in further detail within 

section 6 of this report. It is understood that the applicant is proposing new 

operating hours at its East Quay site to increase the productivity and in turn, 

throughput, of the site. The application seeks only to vary the operating hours 

Page 9



of the sand and gravel processing plant to ensure rail wagons are loaded to 

their maximum capacity. 

 

2.5 The applicant has, on three consecutive occasions, requested and 

subsequently received permission, to vary Condition 3 of extant permission 

LW/799/CM (EIA) to temporarily increase the hours in which processing 

activities can take place as per the hours detailed in this current application. 

Details of these extended periods are as follows: 

 

- Temporary permission was granted on 15th June 2023, limiting the extension 

of operating hours to the 30 November 2023. 

 

- Temporary permission was granted on 13th December, limiting the extension 

of operating hours to 31st May 2024.  

 

- Temporary permission was granted on 23rd August 2024, limiting the 

extension of operating hours to 23rd February 2025.  

 

2.6 During these periods, it is understood that no complaints over activities 

taking place in the extended hours were submitted to East Sussex County 

Council. As such, the applicant is now seeking permission for the permanent 

extension of processing hours. 

 

3. Site History 

 

3.1 Permission was granted in August 2018 for the construction and use of 

plant, namely aggregate processing plant, aggregate bagging plant, concrete 

batching plant and buildings, ancillary offices and stores for processing and 

utilising aggregates landed at Newhaven Port and distribution of the products 

by road and rail together with access to the public highway and the extension 

of an existing rail siding. (LW/799/CM (EIA)) 

 

3.2 Permission was granted in January 2022 for the demolition of part of a 

warehouse building for the construction of 2 new aggregates stock bays and 

the eastern extension of 3 existing aggregates stock bays. (LW/858/CM). 

 

4. Consultations and Representations  

 

4.1 Lewes District Council: The committee objected to the proposal on the 

grounds of noise pollution, in particular from aggregates being moved around 

the site and between the wharf and the site, including out of hours operation. It 

was also noted that in the event ESCC is minded toapprove the application the 

following should be sought: 

 

Page 10



- Ecological and Biodiversity Gains on site; 

 

- Improvements in the reduction of emissions, dust and noise both from 

the plant operations and from HGV movements; and  

 

- Controls that require HGV’s to access the site via McKinlay Way and 

not via Beach Road, East Quay, Clifton Road and Railway Road.  

 

4.2 Newhaven Town Council: The committee objected to this application as 

it was predicated purely upon extended operational hours and no other factor. 

  

4.3 Newhaven Port Authority: No comments provided. 

 

4.4 Newhaven Enterprise Zone: No response received. 

 

4.5 East Sussex County Council Environmental Advice:  Following 

submission of the original application documents, further noise monitoring was 

requested with the aim of capturing background noise levels without operations 

as well as noise levels generated by train and boat activity alone in order to 

gain a clearer understanding of the primary sources of noise associated with 

the application. Following receipt of these details it was concluded that in 

general, the activities taking place over the proposed extended hours is unlikely 

to exceed the background noise levels, other than occasionally, and so will not 

breach the existing planning condition covering noise. Furthermore, it was 

considered that the site is likely to generate significantly greater noise levels 

from the Brett ships unloading than from the day-to-day quayside activities. This 

is considered to indicate that noise complaints are more likely to be driven by 

ships unloading than by the day-to-day activities that are subject to the request 

to extend the weekday and Saturday operating hours. 

 

4.6 Lewes District Council, Councillor Keene: Objected to the proposal on 

the grounds that it will raise significant concerns regarding noise pollution, dust 

emissions and general environmental and public nuisance. It was noted that 

the development already impacts the area during permitted hours and that any 

extension of hours would be neither reasonable nor necessary. It was 

suggested that airborne dust from cement and aggregate processing presents 

a risk to public health. It was also suggested that the extended hours will lead 

to an increase in heavy goods traffic, which must be strictly controlled. The 

proposal was felt to bring no meaningful community benefit, only greater 

disruption.  

 

4.7 Local Ward Councillor James MacCleary (Newhaven and Bishopstone): 

Objects to the proposal, stating that it will be disruptive, not necessary for the 

viability of the business and detrimental to the quality of life of local residents. 

Page 11



Concern was raised for local residents who already suffer substantial disruption 

from businesses operating within the Port. The integrity of the noise report 

submitted was questioned, noting that as a resident living opposite the river, 

the operations of the facility are noisy and disruptive. It was further noted that 

the noise source is not only from aggregates moving around, but also the 

loading and unloading of the ships, the noise of the ships themselves and the 

noise of trains transporting aggregates out of the site.  

 

4.8 Other representations: 26 letters of objection were received from local 

residents. In general, it was felt that the proposal will not benefit local residents 

or the surrounding area, with further concerns of potentially negative impacts 

on the future of the area as a result of the proposal. The main issues raised 

were that of noise pollution, impacts on air quality, increased heavy goods traffic 

and potential conflicts with the Newhaven Port Masterplan. Further details of 

these responses are included in section 6 of this report.  

 

One letter of support was received stating that as a local resident, the noise 

from the port is not causing an issue, recognising that it is a working port.  

 

5. The Development Plan policies of relevance to this decision are: 

 

5.1 East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 

Plan (2013): Policies WMP4 (Sustainable provision and use of minerals in the 

Plan Area); WMP15 (Safeguarding wharves and railheads); WMP18 (Transport 

– Road, rail and water); WMP20 (Community involvement and benefits); 

WMP25 (General amenity); WMP26 (Traffic impacts). 

 

5.2 East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 

Plan Review Revised Policies, October 2024: Policies RM1 (Provision of 

aggregates) and RD1 (Environment and Environmental Enhancement). 

 

5.3 Lewes District Core Strategy 2010-2030: Local Plan Part 1: Core 

Policies 9 (Air quality) and 10 (Natural environment and landscape character). 

 

5.4 Lewes District Local Plan Part 2, Site allocations and development 

management policies, 2020: Policies DM20 (Pollution Management) and DM23 

(Noise). 

 

5.5 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024 

The NPPF does not change the status of the Development Plan as the starting 

point for decision making and constitutes national policy as a material 

consideration in determining planning applications. Parts 2 (Achieving 

Sustainable Development), 6 (Building a Strong and Competitive Economy) 8 

(Promoting Healthy and Safe Communities), 4 (Promoting sustainable 

Page 12



transport), 10 (Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal 

change), 15 (Conserving and enhancing the natural environment) and 17 

(Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals) are particularly relevant in this 

case.  

 

5.6 Environment Act 2021, Schedule 14: In England, developers must 

deliver a Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) of 10% under Schedule 7A of the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by Schedule 14 of the Environment 

Act 2021). However, it is considered that the De Minimis exemption applies to 

this application.  

 

5.7 Newhaven Neighbourhood Plan 2017-2030:  The site lies outside of the 

Neighbourhood Plan area as it forms land in the ownership of the Port Authority. 

However, owing to the proximity of the site to the ‘Eastside’ identified in this 

plan, some consideration will be given to Policies ES3 (Eastside’s Natural 

Environment) requiring  proposals to consider impacts on the natural 

environment and H3 (Housing sites on Eastside) which requires proposed 

development for new housing in the area ensures, inter alia, the design of units 

are orientated so as to ensure future residents are protected from excessive 

noise and pollution from neighbouring businesses.  

 

6. Considerations 

 

Need for the proposal  

 

6.1  Sustaining imports of marine aggregates through local wharves is 

particularly important in East Sussex and is articulated in the Waste and 

Minerals Local Plan.  This is because of the scarcity of land-based mineral 

resources in this area. Policy WMP4 of the Waste and Minerals Plan states that 

proposals for minerals development should, inter alia, make provision for a 

steady supply of minerals in accordance with national policies. In addition, 

WMP15 of the same Plan states that, inter alia, the capacity for landing, 

processing, handling and the associated storage of minerals at wharves in 

Newhaven will be safeguarded. Policy RM1 of the Revised Policies Documents 

states that the Authorities will support the provision of (…) aggregate material 

over the 11-year Plan period by seeking to protect, maintain and enhance 

existing aggregate importation infrastructure and capacity.  

 

6.2  It is understood that the proposed extension of hours would allow for the 

processing of up to 500 tonnes of additional material per hour, or approximately 

7,000 tonnes per week, which is understood to help reduce the height of 

existing stockpiles. This increased throughput would, in principle, contribute 

positively to the steady supply of minerals in the Plan area.  It is understood 

that operations currently require the loading of one train per day, involving 

Page 13



approximately four movements within the site to ensure the wagons are 

correctly placed for loading before leaving the site. It is also understood that 

additional processing time is required to ensure sufficient material is available 

to fill the train wagons during the currently permitted times. The applicant has 

confirmed that the site currently takes in enough raw product to produce the 

targeted tonnage details above and as such, it is not anticipated that additional 

ship movements are required to increase throughput at the site. However, as 

the County Council is unable to impose restrictions on the number of ships 

entering the Port, it would not be justifiable to assume this will remain the case.   

 

6.3 At consultation, the local ward member, Cllr James MacCleary objected 

to the proposal stating that, inter alia, the proposed increase in processing 

hours was not necessary for the viability of the business. This view was echoed 

in other local representations received. When asked whether alternative 

options had been explored to meet the increased processing capacity required, 

the applicant stated that due to the fixed speed of the processing plant, 

processed material can only be increased by running for extended hours. The 

applicant did however state that the operator is always looking to improve the 

efficiency of the plant, which is welcomed. 

 

6.4 Some representations received at consultation raised concern in terms 

of potential conflicts between the proposed development and the objectives of 

the Port Masterplan. Whilst these concerns are acknowledged and understood, 

any matters relating to the principle of the development in this location would 

have been considered and subsequently approved, under the extant 

permission and is therefore not considered a matter for this application. Since 

the time of the original permission a new Port Master Plan has been issued 

(dated 2024). The vision for this plan is referenced as “A port that grows 

sustainably, supporting the town of Newhaven and the wider regional economy, 

and is part of the energy transition” which is considered to remain largely in line 

with the vision provided in the earlier Plan, that would have been considered 

under the original permission. Furthermore, the Port Masterplan acknowledges 

the presence of Brett Aggregates and there is nothing to suggest in the 

Masterplan proposals that their continued operation and the proposed 

extended hours would present a conflict.  

 

6.5   In conclusion, it is considered that increasing the processing activity should 

help to increase operational efficiency and throughput and in turn, make a 

positive contribution to the provision of aggregates to the Plan Area.  It is 

considered that the proposal is supported by policies relating to minerals 

planning and in particular Policy RM1 of the Revised Policies Document, which 

has been adopted since the original permission (LW/799/CM (EIA)) was 

granted. Therefore, the need for the proposal is considered to be acceptable in 

principle.   

Page 14



 

Noise 

 

6.6 Policy WMP25 of the Waste and Minerals Plan states that proposals 

should ensure that there is no unacceptable effect on the standard of amenity 

appropriate to the established, permitted or allocated land uses of the local and 

host communities likely to be affected by the development including transport 

links. Proposals should also ensure that there is no significant adverse impact 

on air quality or the local acoustic environment. In addition, Policy DM20 of the 

Lewes District Local Plan Part 2 states that development with the potential to 

contribute to unacceptable levels of air or noise pollution will only be permitted 

where it can be demonstrated that, inter alia, the development will not have an 

unacceptable impact on health, the natural environment or general amenity. 

Policy DM23 of the same plan states that noise-generating development will 

only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that nearby noise sensitive 

uses (existing or planned) will not be exposed to noise impacts that will 

adversely affect the amenity of existing users. The policy continues to state that 

where appropriate, proposals will be required to provide mitigation against 

noise impacts.  

 

6.7 It is important to note that whilst the overall operation of the site 

generates several noise sources, only those directly associated with processing 

activities are to be considered as part of this proposal. No additional mitigation 

measures to those already secured under extant permission LW/799/CM (EIA) 

have been proposed. Activities include the unloading of materials from ships 

onto an overland conveyor belt which feeds the material into a screener for 

washing and sorting before being either moved into the relevant storage bay or 

loaded directly onto train wagons using HGVs. Ship movements, including the 

loading and unloading of material, fall under Schedule 2, Part 8, Class B of the 

Town and Country Planning General Permitted Development Order (GPDO) 

2015 and are therefore not controlled by the County Council. Condition 3 of the 

extant permission allows the loading of train wagons with aggregate material 

between the hours of 06:00 and 20:00 Mondays to Saturdays inclusive. Whilst 

the timing of ships is controlled by the Port Authority and is dependent on tide 

schedules, as such it is not possible for the County Council to impose any 

restrictions on the movement of ships. 

  

6.8  Noise emitted from the site is currently controlled by Condition 14 of the 

extant permission which states that the noise rating level from the site shall, at 

all times, not exceed the measured background noise level at the nearest noise 

sensitive receptors at The Hope Inn, Newhaven Marina and Marine Drive. The 

condition will remain in place and therefore continue to control any noise 

emissions from the site at any time, including the proposed extended hours. 

Under Condition 13 of the extant permission, various mitigation measures have 

Page 15



been put in place to minimise the sound impacts of the processing plant. These 

include the installation of 6m high barrier attenuation at the train wagon loading 

area and aggregate processing plant, as well as acoustic cladding to the 

crusher and screener. 

 

6.9 At consultation, Lewes District Council objected to the proposal on the 

grounds of noise pollution, particularly from aggregates being moved around 

the site and between the wharf and the site, including out of hours operation. It 

was noted that should planning permission be granted, improvements should 

be sought in the reduction of emissions, dust and noise both from the plant 

operations and from HGV movements. In response, whilst such improvements 

would be welcomed, it is not considered reasonable or justified to request such 

measures by condition within the context of this application, unless the 

extended hours require such mitigation.    

 

6.10 In order to meet the requirements of Policies DM20 and DM23 of the 

Lewes Local Plan Part 2, the proposal must demonstrate, inter alia, that the 

development will not have an unacceptable impact on health, the environment 

or general amenity and that users of the development will not be exposed to 

unacceptable noise disturbance from existing or future uses.  The applicant 

submitted a noise monitoring report (Noise Assessment for Extension of 

Operating Hours, ref. 5361, dated 05.05.2023). Unfortunately, it was noted that 

as the report was unable to identify specific noise sources, it was difficult to 

ascertain the specific impacts of the processing activities that form the basis of 

this application. In addition, it is understood that owing to the nature of the 

operations, the times at which processing activity takes place may vary from 

day to day.  It was therefore considered that the report did not provide a clear 

and sufficient representation of the noise emitted from the site during the 

extended hours proposed. As such, it is considered that the report, on its own 

merit, did not sufficiently demonstrate that there will be no significant adverse 

impacts on local amenity during the extended hours proposed.  

 

6.11 Furthermore, as detailed in section 2 of this report, the applicant was 

granted permission to temporarily extend processing hours for a total of 18 

months. Over this period, it is understood that the County Council received no 

complaints in relation to operations taking place in the extended hours.  To 

ascertain whether the trial period could help to demonstrate that the site can 

carry out processing activities up to the extended hours proposed on a 

permanent basis, the applicant was asked to evidence that the site had been 

carrying out processing up to 20:00 Monday to Friday and 17:00 on Saturdays 

consistently, with no complaint. Unfortunately, the applicant was only able to 

confirm that the site operated up to 20:00 a total of 39 times; 24 times in August 

through to October of 2024 and 15 times between February and March of 2025. 

Page 16



This is not considered to be sufficient in demonstrating that processing activity 

is able to take place within the extended hours without complaint.  

 

6.12 In light of concerns raised regarding noise associated with ship and train 

movements and in acknowledging the limitations identified in the originally 

submitted noise reports, the County Council requested additional noise 

monitoring to be undertaken. The objective of this monitoring was to separately 

capture background noise levels without operations, as well as noise levels 

generated by train and ship activity alone, in order to gain a clearer 

understanding of the primary sources of noise associated with the application. 

 

6.13 At consultation, the County Environmental Team concluded that the data 

appears to show that the unloading of ships appears to be significantly noisier 

at the main noise sensitive receptors than the day-to-day Brett operations on 

the quayside, both during the currently permitted hours as well as the proposed 

extension of operating hours. It was also concluded that the loading of the trains 

seems to be about the same noise level, or below, at the main noise sensitive 

receptors than the day-to-day Brett operations on the quayside, both during the 

currently permitted hours as well as the proposed extension of operating hours. 

It was also noted that, when in port, the ferry dominates background noise 

levels, and frequently the residual noise levels. Furthermore, it was 

recommended that in light of the range of acoustic reports submitted there is 

sufficient data available to reach the conclusion that the site is and will continue 

to be audible during parts of the extended hours sought. However, it was 

considered unlikely that this will exceed background noise levels, other than 

occasionally and as such will not breach the existing planning conditions 

covering noise. It was noted that a possible exception is in the rear gardens of 

Marine Drive however, it is also noted that these noise sensitive receptors are 

over 1km away from the Brett site and over soft ground, so noise attenuation 

will be significant and other noise sources, such as from the A259, are likely to 

dominate. Furthermore, it was recommended that any noise experienced from 

the site should be viewed in the context of a working port, which includes noise 

from other industrial and commercial activity in addition to that from the 

applicant.  

 

6.14 To meet the requirements of Core Policy 9 of the Lewes Core Strategy 

Part 1, the proposal must, inter alia, ensure that development will not have a 

negative impact on the surrounding area in terms of its effect on health, the 

natural environment or general amenity, taking into consideration cumulative 

impacts. Arguably, it could be considered that noise emitted from the use, 

movement, loading and unloading of ships and trains could generate 

cumulative impacts in forming part of the processing activity, with the exemption 

of any other noise sources on site such as concrete bagging. Any concerns 

regarding cumulative impacts are acknowledged, particularly in light of the most 

Page 17



recent monitoring reports highlighting noise generated by these sources. 

However, it is also important to acknowledge that such impacts would have 

been considered and subsequently approved, under the extant permission 

which assessed all operations on site, including concrete bagging.  The 

potential cumulative impacts to be assessed as part of this permission would 

be limited to processing activities only and again, only within the extended 

hours proposed, which on balance are considered to be relatively minor in 

comparison. Furthermore, it is understood that noise generating activities within 

the Port area have changed over recent years, arguably creating more 

favourable conditions in comparison to those under which the original 

permission was granted, largely due to the departure of metal recycling 

business, Ripley’s. With this in mind, and again, taking into consideration that 

the key activities potentially considered cumulative in nature within this context 

of this proposal fall under Permitted Development, it is difficult to conclude with 

any degree of certainty that the cumulative impacts of the proposed 

development are unacceptable. The applicant is encouraged to carefully 

consider operational activities moving forward to ensure, where possible, 

processing activities are not scheduled at the same time as the loading and 

unloading of ships and trains to ensure the site remains compliant with existing 

noise conditions.   

 

6.15 In conclusion, it is acknowledged that the noise generated from the 

processing activities will, to some extent, be audible during part of the extended 

hours requested. The concerns raised at consultation are understandable given 

the extension of hours into the Weekday evenings and Saturday afternoons 

when leisure and recreational activities may increase during certain parts of the 

year. It is of the utmost importance that the County Council is satisfied that 

residential amenity will not be adversely affected by the proposed development. 

As detailed above, the reports submitted are considered to demonstrate that 

any noise generated from processing activities alone, are unlikely to exceed 

background noise levels. The site will be required by condition to continue to 

operate within the parameters of the Noise Management Plan approved under 

application LW/799/CM(EIA). Furthermore, the noise rating level from the site 

shall, at all times, not exceed the measured background noise level at the 

nearest noise sensitive receptors.  Taking this into consideration and the 

consultation response from the County Environmental Team, it is not 

considered reasonable and justified to recommend refusal on the ground of 

noise pollution.   

 

Air Quality  

 

6.16 Policy WMP25 of the Waste and Minerals Local Plan requires that all 

proposals should ensure that there is no unacceptable effect on the standard 

of amenity appropriate to the land uses of the local and host communities likely 

Page 18



to be affected by the development; there is no significant adverse impact on air 

quality; there is adequate means of controlling dust, litter, odours and other 

emissions, including those arising from traffic generated by the development 

are secured and there is no unacceptable effect on the recreational or tourist 

use of an area. In addition, Core Policy 9 of the Lewes Core Strategy (2010-

2030) Part 1, requires all proposals to, inter alia, ensure the development will 

not have a negative impact on the surrounding area in terms of its effect on 

health, the natural environment or general amenity, taking into account 

cumulative impacts. 

 

6.17 The potential key air pollutants resulting from the proposal are likely to 

be from the movement of vehicles and plant, as well as the associated handling 

and transfer of aggregates. No additional data was submitted by the applicant 

in relation to the potential impacts of the proposed increase in processing hours 

on air quality.  Under the extant permission, the applicant was required to 

submit an Air Quality Assessment for the site’s operations as a whole to inform 

the application which, inter alia, set out a methodology for assessing dust and 

traffic pollution. The Council’s decision on that extant permission considered 

that, taking account of the proposed mitigation, the overall assessment of 

residual dust emissions for the site is considered to be small. The applicant also 

agreed to contribute £15,000 towards improving air quality via the Newhaven 

Air Quality Action Plan. Any potential impacts associated with the increase in 

hours for processing activity only, are considered to be significantly less than 

those originally considered under the change of use of the site and as such no 

additional contributions to this agreement are proposed.  

 

6.18 At consultation, local representations raised concerns that the proposal 

would have negative impacts on air quality, with particular regard to airborne 

dust from cement and aggregate particles and the associated risks to health. It 

was noted that loose sand is blown from the top of stockpiles. One response 

suggested that if permission is granted, a condition is included to address 

filtration to address the smells released from the operation which can have 

health implications.  

 

6.19 The site currently operates in compliance with the Dust Mitigation 

Scheme approved in November 2018 under Condition 8 of the extant 

permission. (Newhaven Aggregate Facility Dust Mitigation Scheme – Rev 2, 

dated and received 08.10.2018). The document details various mitigation 

measures in place, including but not limited to, dampening down of all 

unsurfaced areas over which plant and vehicles are required to travel, routine 

sweeping of paved areas and minimisation of drop heights of aggregates into 

hoppers. The document also includes additional controls in the event that a 

trigger level is exceeded, including the temporary cessation of the activities 

responsible for causing dust impact. Furthermore, procedures to check the 

Page 19



effectiveness of such measures, including routine visual inspections the results 

of which are to be recorded in a site log. It is noted that in the event that a trigger 

level is exceeded and additional measures are employed the frequency of 

inspections will increase until such time as no dust is visible at the site 

boundary. The document also details the complaints action procedure for the 

site, to ensure any complaints received are dealt with effectively.  This Dust 

Mitigation Scheme would equally apply to the extended hours, were permission 

to be granted. 

 

6.20 It is understood that the proposal does not seek to increase the number 

of vehicles entering and leaving the site. The loading of train wagons is currently 

permitted to take place up to 20:00 Mondays to Saturdays using front-end 

loading shovel HGVs, with no current restrictions to the number of vehicle 

movements that can take place within this time period. The increase in hours 

of processing may result in an increase of vehicle movements within the site. 

However, it is not considered reasonable to impose further restrictions within 

the site as a result of the increased processing hours.  As such, any potential 

adverse impacts arising on air quality as a result of the extended hours are not 

considered to be significant.  

 

6.21 Whilst it is acknowledged that some concern was raised at consultation 

regarding potential impacts relating to odour, it is noted that this has would have 

been considered under the extant permission. As such it is considered unlikely 

that the proposed increase in hours will have an adverse impact on odour 

emissions related to processing activities over the additional hours proposed. 

However, in the event that complaints are received to this nature, the County 

Council request to be notified.  

 

6.22 In conclusion it is considered unlikely that the proposed increase in 

processing hours will have a significant negative impact on local amenity in 

terms of air pollution. Subject to continued compliance with the existing 

conditions seeking to control dust and emissions, it is considered that the 

proposal does not conflict with relevant Development Plan policies.  It is 

recommended that the applicant seeks advice regarding ways in which 

operational improvements can be made to ensure the continued reduction of 

emissions and dust from the plant operations and from HGV movements.  

 

Traffic 

 

6.23 Policy WMP18 of the Waste and Minerals Plan seeks to minimise the 

environmental and amenity effects of the transport of waste and minerals by 

promoting rail and water transport as an alternative to road transport. The policy 

requires proposals to demonstrate how, inter alia, access to the strategic 

highway network is suitable and how impacts on road safety and congestion 

Page 20



have been addressed, and what measures have been incorporated including 

mitigation to avoid unacceptable harm to the environment and local 

communities. Policy WMP26 requires proposals to, inter alia, ensure the level 

of traffic generated would not exceed the capacity of the local road network and 

no unacceptable adverse impact upon existing highway conditions in terms of 

traffic congestion should arise. The NPPF requires all developments that 

generate significant traffic movements should be supported by a Transport 

assessment. 

 

6.24 At consultation, Lewes District Council objected to the proposal, stating 

that if the County Council are minded to approve the application, controls 

should be in place that require HGVs to access the site via McKinlay Way and 

not via Beach Rd, East Quay, Clifton Rd and Railway Rd. Concerns were raised 

by local residents regarding the potential increase in heavy goods traffic and 

resultant environmental impacts that would ensue, as a result of the proposed 

increase in processing hours. It was further noted that traffic movements must 

be strictly controlled, that all plant-related traffic should be confined to McKinlay 

Way and explicitly barred from using any other local routes. 

 

6.25 It is understood that no additional HGV movements are proposed and as 

such, there should be no additional transport-related impacts as a result of the 

increased processing hours. Furthermore, there are no proposed increase to 

staffing levels and as such no change to staff car parking requirements.  

Existing extant conditions will be either carried over or amended where 

necessary, should permission be granted, ensuring restrictions remain in place 

to effectively manage any traffic related impacts that may arise. It is therefore 

considered that the proposal meets the policy requirements and is acceptable 

in terms of traffic related impacts.  

 

Impacts on nature conservation  

 

6.26 Policy RD1 of the Revised Policies Document states that to conserve 

and enhance the built and natural environment development should, inter alia, 

protect and enhance designated sites, areas and features of environmental, 

landscape and historic importance, including Local Wildlife Sites. Furthermore, 

Core Policy 10 of the Lewes Core Strategy (2010-2030), Part 1 states that 

proposals shall, inter alia, ensure that the development will not harm nature 

conservation interests, unless the benefits of development at that location 

clearly outweigh the harm caused, in which case mitigation measures are to be 

provided. 

 

6.27 The Tide Mills Local Wildlife Site (LWS, formally known as a Site of 

Nature Conservation Importance (SNCI)) adjoins the application site to the 

north, south and east. The Tide Mills LWS is designated in part for its vegetated 

Page 21



shingle habitat and associated plant and animal communities. The site also 

includes Mill Creek to the north of the application site, a tidal area that provides 

an important habitat for wading birds. Other designated sites within the locality 

include the Lewes Downs Special Area of Conservation (SAC), Castle Hill SAC, 

the Pevensey Levels SAC and Ramsar site and the Ashdown Forest SAC and 

Special Protection Area.  

 

6.28 Any associated impacts of the processing activity in question upon 

conservation interests were considered alongside all other operations at the 

site, under the extant permission. As part of that decision, a contribution of 

£20,000 was secured through the Section 106 agreement towards the Sussex 

Local Wildlife Sites Initiative to provide mitigation and where necessary, 

compensatory measures. Any potential impacts on the Local Wildlife Site 

associated with the proposal in question are not considered to be over and 

above those impacts that have already arisen from the extant permission.  

Therefore, no additional contributions to this agreement are proposed. 

Furthermore, the proposal does not involve any additional development on 

land, nor does it propose any change to the existing, or introduction of new, 

lighting. 

 

6.29 Lewes District Council have requested that onsite ecological and 

biodiversity enhancements are sought should the County Council recommend 

approval. The existing mitigation measures in place on the site, including 

screening around the plant, are considered adequate in preventing adverse 

visual or noise related impacts on local wildlife over the extended hours 

proposed. The issue of potential dust and noise emissions has been covered 

in more detail elsewhere in this report and conditions are in place to ensure the 

site operates in compliance with a dust management plan and relevant noise 

conditions.  

 

6.30 Biodiversity Net Gain is not applicable to this application and as such, 

onsite enhancements are not required by condition. It is considered that there 

is potential for the applicant to provide offsite enhancements, however owing to 

the nature of the site and its operations, it is considered that effective and 

meaningful options are limited. The applicant is encouraged to seek further 

advice from a qualified specialist in this respect, as detailed in an informative 

later in this report.  

 

6.31 Owing to the existing mitigation measures in place, it is not anticipated 

that dust and noise emissions emanating from the increased processing hours 

would create conditions beyond the application site boundary which would have 

an unacceptable adverse effect on the wildlife or habitats of Tide Mills  nor 

would it be likely to give rise to significant effects on the interest features of the 

designated sites. Consequently, it is considered that there is no conflict with 

Page 22



relevant Development Plan policies or the provisions of the NPPF in protecting 

nature conservation interests on adjoining land and the proposal can be 

considered acceptable in terms of impacts on nature conservation interests. 

 

7. Conclusion and reasons for approval 

 

7.1 In accordance with Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004 the decision on this application should be taken in 

accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate 

otherwise. 

 

7.2 With the Waste and Minerals Plan area being somewhat dependent 

upon marine won aggregate, the proposal is considered to accord with Policy 

RM1 of the Waste and Minerals Plan Revised Policy Document.  The potential 

impacts upon the host community, particularly noise, air quality and nature 

conservation interests, as a result of the proposed extended hours have been 

given careful consideration.  Any such impacts are either considered to be 

minimal and/or are capable of being controlled/mitigated against through 

existing extant conditions that apply to the site. It is considered that the 

proposed development complies with the following Policies: Policies WMP4; 

WMP18; WMP20; WMP25 and WMP26 of the East Sussex, South Downs and 

Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan (2013); Policies RM1 and RD1 of 

the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 

Review Revised Policies, October 2024: Core Policies 9 and 10 of the Lewes 

District Core Strategy 2010-2030: Local Plan Part 1 and Policies DM20 and 

DM23 of the Lewes District Local Plan Part 2, Site allocations and development 

management policies, 2020, and Parts 2, 4, 6, 15 and 17 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework 2024.   

  

7.3 In determining this planning application, the County Council has worked 

with the applicant and agent in a positive and proactive manner. The Council 

has also sought views from consultees and neighbours and has considered 

these in preparing the recommendation. This approach has been taken 

positively and proactively in accordance with the requirement in the NPPF, and 

as set out in the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 

Procedure) (England) Order 2015.  

 

There are no other material considerations and the decision should be taken in 

accordance with the Development Plans.  

 

8. Recommendation 

 

8.1 The Planning Committee are recommended to grant planning 

permission subject to the following conditions:- 

Page 23



 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

  
 Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the drawings and documents listed in the Schedule of Approved Plans as 
referenced under planning application LW/799/CM (EIA). 

  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 

planning. 
 
3. The site shall not be used for the development hereby permitted other than 

between the hours of 07.00 - 20.00 on Mondays to Fridays inclusive and 
07.00 - 17.00 on Saturdays, except for the loading of train wagons with 
aggregate material, which shall take place between the hours of 06.00 - 
20.00 on Mondays to Saturdays inclusive, excluding on Bank and Public 
Holidays. There shall be no activities outside these times except in an 
emergency or unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Director of 
Communities, Economy and Transport.  

   
 Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the amenities of the locality in 

accordance with Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and 
Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Local Plan 2013.  

  
4. The movement of vehicles associated with the use hereby approved shall 

not take place except via the Newhaven port access road (McKinlay Way) 
to the east of the site. No such vehicles shall use the port access via 
Railway Road, Clifton Road and Beach Road, unless for reasons of an 
emergency. 

   
 Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the amenities of the locality in 

accordance with Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and 
Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Local Plan 2013.  

5. All activities associated with operations permitted under application 
LW/799/CM(EIA) and details hereby approved regarding the extension of 
permitted processing hours, shall be carried out in accordance with The 
Operational Travel Plan approved under application LW/799/CM(EIA). 

   
 The operational travel plan shall be implemented in accordance with the 

approved details. 
   
 Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the amenities of the locality in 

accordance with Policy WMP 25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and 
Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Local Plan 2013. 

  
6. All activities associated with operations permitted under application 

LW/799/CM(EIA) and details hereby approved regarding the extension of 

Page 24



permitted processing hours, shall be carried out in accordance with the 
Dust Mitigation Scheme approved under application LW/799/CM(EIA). 

   
 The dust mitigation scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 

approved details. 
   
 Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the amenities of the locality in 

accordance with Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and 
Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Local Plan 2013.   

  
7. External lighting at the site shall be in accordance with details approved 

on 30 August 2018 under Condition 10 of LW/799/CM(EIA). No additional 
external lighting shall be installed on the site unless otherwise submitted 
to and agreed in writing by  the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport.  

  
 Reason: To protect the general amenities of the area in accordance with 

Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Local Plan 2013. 

 
8. All activities associated with operations permitted under application 

LW/799/CM(EIA) and details hereby approved regarding the extension of 
permitted processing hours, shall be carried out in accordance with The 
Noise Management Plan approved under application LW/799/CM(EIA). 

   
 The noise management plan shall be implemented in accordance with the 

approved details. 
   
 Reason: In the interests of safeguarding amenity in accordance with Policy 

WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste 
and Minerals Local Plan 2013.  

  
 
9. The noise rating level from the site shall at all times not exceed the 

measured background noise level at the nearest noise sensitive receptors 
at The Hope Inn, Newhaven Marina and Marine Drive, as shown at 
Appendix 2 in the Noise Assessment Report (ref. 4598), dated 12 October 
2017, by WBM Acoustic Consultants, as measured in accordance with BS 
4142:2014. 

   
 Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the amenities of the locality in 

accordance with Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and 
Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013.  

  
10. The applicant shall notify the County Planning Authority of the 

commencement of the permitted extended hours. Within one month of the 
start of the permitted extended operating hours a noise monitoring 
assessment will be carried out by a suitably qualified independent 3rd 
party acoustic consultant, following recognised good practice, to 

Page 25



determine compliance with condition 9 and a report submitted in writing to 
the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport. 

   
 The report shall:  
  
 a) demonstrate whether the noise levels required by condition 9  are being 

achieved; 
 b) if the survey does not demonstrate such compliance the report must 

include measures to reduce noise, which shall first be agreed in writing by 
the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport, such that the noise 
levels required by condition 9  will be met;  

 c)These measures shall be implemented within a time period to be agreed 
by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport, and compliance 
shall be demonstrated by a further noise survey, which must be submitted 
to and agreed in writing by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport within a further 3 months of the measures being implemented. 

   
 Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the amenities of the locality in 

accordance with Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and 
Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013.   

  
11. The Flood Risk Management measures, including proposed mitigation, as 

set out in Section 8.0 of the Water Environment and Flood Risk 
Assessment report by SLR Consulting Limited, dated October 2017 and 
approved under Permission LW/700/CM(EIA) shall be carried out as part 
of the development. The measures shall be fully implemented and 
subsequently maintained throughout the duration of the development. 

  
 Reason: To ensure the risk of flooding is adequately managed and 

minimised in accordance with Policy WMP28a of the East Sussex, South 
Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Local Plan 2013. 

  
 
 INFORMATIVES 
 
1. The permitted site operations will enable the production of recycled 

aggregate to be sold from the site.  As such the site operator will be 
required to make annual returns (detailing sales production and capacity) 
to the minerals planning authority in respect of the Aggregate Monitoring 
survey. This information will then be collated and sent to the South East 
Aggregate Working Party on behalf of the Government. 

 
2. The applicant is reminded that the site will be monitored as part of the 

County Council's Site Monitoring Policy, to ensure operations at the site 
remain in compliance with the conditions attached to the planning 
permission hereby approved. 

 
3. The effect of paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 is that planning permission granted for the development 
of land in England is deemed to have been granted subject to the condition 

Page 26



("the biodiversity gain condition") that development may not begin unless: 
(a) a Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, 
and (b) the planning authority has approved the plan. The planning 
authority, for the purposes of determining whether to approve a 
Biodiversity Gain Plan if one is required in respect of this permission would 
be East Sussex County Council. There are statutory exemptions and 
transitional arrangements which mean that the biodiversity gain condition 
does not always apply. These are listed in paragraph 17 of Schedule 7A 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Biodiversity Gain 
Requirements (Exemptions) Regulations 2024. 

  
 Based on the information available this permission does not require the 

approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun because 
one of the statutory exemptions or transitional arrangements listed is 
relevant. 

 
Schedule of Approved Plans and Documents 
 
Supporting Statement, Site Noise Monitoring Report, Figure L-DR1 Rev A Site 

Location Plan, Wbm Technical Note 4903 Brett Newhaven August 2025 
Rev2 (a), Wbm Technical Note 4903 Brett Newhaven August 2025 Rev2 
(b) 

 
 
RUPERT CLUBB 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

See Electronic case file LW/896/CM 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee:  Regulatory  
Planning Committee 
 

Date: 17 September 2025 
 

Report by: Director of Communities Economy and Transport 
 

Proposal: Use of land for the importation, deposit, storage & 
processing for recycling and recovery of skip waste 
comprising construction, demolition and excavation 
waste, commercial and industrial, and household waste 
(part retrospective) including construction of new 
concrete hardstanding and storage bays 
 

Site Address: Hole Farm, Westfield Lane Westfield TN35 4SA 
 

Applicant: Mr Luke Field EcoSkip  Waste & Recycling Ltd 
 

Application No. RR/899/CM 
 

Key Issues: i) Need  
ii) Effect on the High Weald National Landscape 

and local landscape character  
iii) Amenity 
iv) Traffic impacts 
v) Surface water drainage 

 
Contact Officer:     
 

Helen Ogden, 01273 336532 

Local Member:  
    

Councillor Carl Maynard 

 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. To grant planning permission subject to conditions as indicated 
in paragraph 8.1 of this report 
 

 
CONSIDERATION BY DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITIES ECONOMY AND 
TRANSPORT 
 
1. The Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The application site at Hole Farm is within the High Weald National 
Landscape, previously referred to as an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
(AONB), approximately 1 kilometre south of Westfield and 1 kilometre north of 
Baldslow, the latter forming part of the northern development boundary of 
Hastings. The site is approximately 0.6 hectares in area and comprises a 
reasonably level, compacted hardcore surface, which is used as an existing 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



waste management facility. A scrap metal recycling business adjoins the site, 
as well as other businesses including a groundworks company.  
 
1.2 The facility includes stockpiles of inert waste materials and storage areas 
for bagged recycled aggregates, timber, palleted bricks and skips for the 
reception of metals and plastics removed for re-use. The boundary of the site 
consists of dense scrubby hedgerows and mature trees. Access to the site is 
from the north from a private road off the A28, Westfield Lane. A gated access 
is also present at the south-western side of the site which allows passage into 
the field beyond. Public Footpath Westfield 52 is present to the south-west of 
the site off the A28 and tracks south-eastwards across a field into Maplehurst 
Wood, a Site of Special Scientific Interest, about 90 metres distant. 
 
2. The Proposal 
 
2.1 For the purpose of providing context, the applicant initially requested and 
subsequently received, pre-application advice on 15th December 2023 
regarding, inter alia, the alteration of the existing site layout plan. Following this, 
an application was received in October 2024 (RR/893/CM) for the variation of 
Conditions 1,2,4,8,9 & 12 of planning permission RR/724/CM to change, inter 
alia, the layout of the site. Following an Officer visit in January 2025 concerns 
were raised regarding significant breaches of the current planning permission, 
with particular regard to the volume, height and location of material stockpiles 
onsite and related adverse impacts. The applicant was issued an enforcement 
letter (dated 25th February) detailing the urgent need to address these issues 
and the subsequent enforcement action that will need to be taken, namely a 
breach of condition notice. The site has continued to be carefully monitored, it 
has been observed that whilst some measures have been taken to bring the 
site within reasonable parameters of the requirements of the extant permission, 
breaches remain albeit with no further complaints received to date.  
 
2.2 Following pre-application advice and the subsequent planning 
application to vary several conditions of the extant permission, it became 
apparent that the nature of business being undertaken by the applicant was not 
in keeping with the spirit of the existing permission, particularly with regards to 
the introduction of skip waste to the site. As such, the applicant was advised to 
carefully consider the requirements of the operation, including the required 
layout of the site, and submit a new full planning application, accurately 
reflecting the current nature of the business.  
 
2.3 This new full application is for use of land for the importation, deposit, 
storage and processing for recycling and recovery of skip waste comprising 
construction, demolition and excavation waste, commercial and industrial, and 
household waste (part retrospective) including construction of new concrete 
hardstanding and storage bays. The site already has permission for such a use, 
however the introduction of skips and household waste will be a new waste 
stream if permitted at the site.  
 
2.4 The proposal seeks permission to change the site layout, installation of 
an extended new hardstanding area, surface water drainage scheme, erection 

Page 32



of storage bays and installation of additional machinery. The site will continue 
to have a throughput of 10,000 tonnes of material per annum, which will be 
screened and sorted for onward recycling and recovery. It is understood that of 
this, a maximum of 500 tonnes per annum will comprise of incidental items 
which may be classed as commercial, industrial and household waste. It is 
understood that this waste stream will be separated from other waste streams 
and stored separately in a designated skip within the concrete pad area, as 
detailed later in this report.  
 
2.5 The existing concrete pad area to the north of the site will be extended 
from 312.5m2 to 725m2 in area, which will also include the erection of a 2.4m 
high wall and storage bays constructed from interlocking concrete blocks. A 
surface water drainage system, including silt tank, piping and storage tank, will 
be installed around the concrete pad.  
 
2.6  The additional machinery to be introduced to the site includes the 
retrospective installation and use of a small mobile trommel screener to be 
located on the concrete pad and 3-way split screener in the centre of the site, 
again retrospective. As well as the installation and use of an air separator in the 
centre of the site and crusher to the south-west of the site. The use of a 360◦ 

loading shovel/excavator, as existing, will continue.  
 
2.7  The proposal also includes the installation of a new 2m high chain-link 
fence and native planting along the western boundary, further details of which 
are included later in this report.   
 
2.8 The Transport Statement submitted with this application details that 
there will be no more than 40 daily vehicle movements (20 in and 20 out). It is 
understood that under the extant permission (RR/724/CM) there are no 
restrictions in place with regards to vehicle movements.  
 
2.9 Hours of operation will remain unchanged from the original permission 
(RR/700/CM) as 08:00-18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00- 13:00 on Saturdays 
with no Sunday or public bank holiday working.  Processing activities are 
currently restricted to between the hours of 09:00-16:00 Mondays to Fridays, 
with no activities permitted on weekends or public bank holidays. No change is 
sought to these processing hours. The proposal seeks to increase the number 
of full-time staff from 2 to 5.  
 
2.10  An Environmental Impact Assessment Screening Opinion has been 
carried out, concluding that an Environmental Impact Assessment would not be 
required for this application.  
 
3. Site History 
 
3.1 In October 2012 planning permission was granted for the use of land for 
the importation, deposit, storage and processing of construction and demolition 
waste (including but not limited to concrete, rubble, soils, sub-soils, metal and 
plastics) (retrospective), together with the construction of a noise attenuation 
barrier. (Ref. RR/700/CM). 

Page 33



 
3.2 In February 2014 permission was granted for the variation of Conditions 
1, 2 and 5 of planning permission RR/700/CM. Variation of Condition 2 was to 
permit the use of an alternative crusher and variation of Condition 5 was to 
permit storage of material to a height of 6m and variation of Condition 1 was to 
deal with consequential amendments arising from Conditions 2 and 5. 
(RR/724/CM). 
 
3.3 In October 2024 an application was submitted for Variation of Conditions 
1,2,4,8,9 & 12 of planning permission RR/724/CM to change the layout of the 
site. This was withdrawn in January 2025. (RR/893/CM). 
 
4. Consultations and Representations  
  
4.1  Rother District Council: No objection, subject to the necessary 
conditions as set out in pervious permissions granted. 
 
4.2 Westfield Parish Council: No response received.  
 
4.3 High Weald AONB Officer: No response received. 
 
4.4 Environment Agency: No objection. Guidance has been provided 
regarding Environmental Permits and is detailed as an informative.  
 
4.5 NatureSpace: No objection.   
 
4.6 Scottia Gas Network: Provided comments detailed as an informative. 
 
4.7 County Landscape Architect: No objection.  
 
4.8 County Environmental Advice: No objection subject to the imposition of 
conditions in relation to noise and dust.    
 
4.9 Lead Local Flood Authority: No objection subject to conditions requiring 
the submission of further details of the proposed drainage system.  
 
4.10 Highway Authority: No objection subject to the imposition of conditions 
relating to the provision of parking spaces on site and utilisation of turning 
spaces within the site.   
 
4.11 Local Member: No response received. 
 
4.12 Local Representations: 4 letters of objection have been received from 
neighbouring residents, the responses of which have been summarised as 
follows: 
 
Traffic related impacts including potential increase in vehicle movements, 
impacts on users of the Highway including cyclists and pedestrians, including 
outside of daylight hours. Concerns were raised regarding the narrow nature of 
the footpath which has been described as unlit, poorly maintained and lacking 

Page 34



in traffic calming measures, as such it could pose a risk to members of the 
public particularly when trying to cross the road.  
 
Concerns were raised regarding inappropriate parking on the accessway which 
has been observed to cause congestion, making it difficult for users, including 
horses, to pass.  
 
Inappropriate location of a waste recycling facility in the High Weald National 
Landscape.  
 
Increase in noise and dust pollution from the site, including potential air quality 
and health risks associated with crushing activities in particular. Noise levels 
during operation, transportation, and processing times were raised as a 
concern. 
 
 Visual impacts of stacked skips, stockpiles and diggers as well as litter. Use of 
pathway to the side of the site for loading concrete, having the potential to cause 
danger to pedestrians.  
 
5. The Development Plan and other policies of relevance to this 
decision are: 
 
5.1 East Sussex South Downs and Brighton and Hove Waste and Minerals 
Local Plan 2013: Policies WMP3b (Turning Waste into a Resource), WMP6 
(Safeguarding waste sites), WMP18 (Transport), WMP25 (General Amenity), 
WMP28a (Flood risk) and WMP28b (Water resources and water quality).   
 
5.2 East Sussex South Downs and Brighton and Hove Waste and Minerals 
Local Plan Revised Policies 2024: Policies RV1(Minerals and waste 
development affecting the South Downs National Park and High Weald Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty), RM1 (Provision of aggregates for the Plan Area) 
and RD1 (Environment and environmental enhancement). 
 
5.3 East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Local Plan – Waste and Minerals Site Plan (Feb 2017): Map 39 SP-WCA/U.  
 
5.4 Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014: Policies SRM2 (Water supply 
and wastewater management), EN1 (Landscape Stewardship), EN5 
(Biodiversity and green space) and TR4 (Car Parking).  
 
5.5 Rother District Council Development and Site Allocations Local Plan 
2019: Policies DEN1 (Maintaining Landscape Character), DEN2 (High Weald 
AONB) and DEN7 (Environmental Pollution).  
 
5.6 National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW): The document identifies a 
series of locational criteria that should be met with regards to the location of a 
development such as that proposed. This includes, inter alia, consideration of 
landscape and visual impacts, nature conservation, traffic and access, air 
emissions including dust and odours. Each of these criteria have been 
considered and addressed in further detail throughout the report.  

Page 35



 
5.7 National Planning Policy Framework (2024): Chapter 2 (Achieving 
Sustainable Development), Chapter 6 (Building a Strong and Competitive 
Economy), Chapter 9 (Promoting Sustainable Transport), Chapter 14 (Climate 
Change and Flooding), Chapter 15 (Conserving and Enhancing the Natural 
Environment).  
 
5.8 Environment Act 2021, Schedule 14: In England, developers must 
deliver a Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) of 10% under Schedule 7A of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by Schedule 14 of the Environment 
Act 2021). However, it is considered that the De Minimis exemption applies to 
this application.  
 
5.9 High Weald Management Plan (2024-2029): DS1: (preserve the dark 
skies of the High Weald AONB by minimising light pollution); and DS2 (protect 
wildlife and habitats from light pollution across the High Weald); PQ2 (protect 
unspoilt rural landscape with its intrinsic sense of naturalness, valued views), 
Planning Principle 1.  
 
6. Considerations 
 
Need  
 
6.1 Policy WMP3b of the East Sussex South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 states that development proposals should 
demonstrate that they will contribute to the implementation of the waste 
hierarchy by indicating how the waste could be managed in the priority order of 
the hierarchy. Policy WMP6 of the same Plan promotes the safeguarding of, 
inter alia, existing waste management sites. Policy RV1 of the East Sussex 
South Downs and Brighton and Hove Waste and Minerals Local Plan Revised 
Policies 2024 states, inter alia, that small scale waste management facilities for 
local needs are not precluded from the National Park or Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty where they meet the requirements of Policies RD1 and RW1. 
Policy RW1 states that the principle of development will be supported where, 
inter alia, the site is located within a broad Area of Focus indicated on the Key 
Diagram and within the context of this Policy supporting Strategic Objectives 
S01, S04 and S08 of the Waste and Minerals Plan. Policy RM1 details how the 
Authorities will support the provision of aggregate material over the Plan period 
by seeking to protect, maintain and enhance existing aggregate importation 
infrastructure and capacity as well as recycled and secondary production. The 
Site is part of a larger site that is safeguarded for waste use (SP-WCA/U) in the 
East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Sites 
Plan (2017).  
 
6.2 The principle of managing waste at the site has been established 
through planning permission RR/700/CM. Therefore, it has been accepted that 
a waste management facility for construction and demolition waste is 
acceptable in this location within the countryside and High Weald National 
Landscape, subject to relevant controls. The proposal seeks to improve the 
efficiency of the site through the introduction of new plant and a revised site 

Page 36



layout plan. The annual throughput of material is proposed to remain 
unchanged at 10,000 tonnes per annum (tpa). It is noted that the proposal 
originally sought an increase to 15,000tpa, however this was reduced following 
advice provided by officers suggesting that it would be unlikely such an increase 
would have Policy support due to, inter alia, the constrained nature of the site.   
 
6.3 The extant permission states that the use of the site is limited to the 
importation, deposit, storage and processing of no more than 10,000 tonnes 
per annum of construction and demolition waste materials. The permission 
specifies the only waste materials to be accepted to the site include concrete, 
bricks, tiles and ceramics, mixtures of concrete, bricks, tiles and ceramics and 
soils and stones. The application seeks approval for the importation and 
processing of 9,500tpa of Construction and Demolition(C&D) waste with the 
remaining 500tpa consisting largely of household ‘bulky’ waste items, described 
by the applicant as being ‘incidental to the operations’ and as such, a 
requirement of the permission. The degree to which this waste stream is 
incidental to the operations is questionable and given the site is currently 
operating in significant breach of the extant planning permission, the permitted 
introduction of this new waste stream to the site raises matters that need to be 
considered and assessed as part of our deliberations on this application.   
 
6.4 The applicant has submitted several supporting documents to 
demonstrate how any potentially adverse impacts arising from the proposal can 
be managed and mitigated to acceptable levels. The identification and further 
consideration of these impacts have been addressed in the following sections 
of this report.   
 
6.5 In conclusion, it is considered that the use of the site will not change 
significantly as a result of this proposal. Whilst the introduction of a small 
amount of household waste to the site does change the nature of operations to 
some extent (discussed in further detail later in this report), it is considered that 
the scale of operations will remain largely unchanged. Improving the efficiency 
of the site is considered to align with the relevant policies seeking to improve 
the recycling and recovery of materials in line with the waste hierarchy and as 
such, is considered acceptable in principle subject to the imposition of 
conditions as discussed later in this report.   
 
Effect on the High Weald National Landscape and local landscape character  
 
6.6 Policy RD1 of the East Sussex South Downs and Brighton and Hove 
Waste and Minerals Local Plan Revised Policies 2024 states that development 
should, inter alia, protect and enhance designated sites, areas and features of 
environmental, landscape and historic importance. The policy also encourages 
the provision of measurable net gain in biodiversity and enhancement of natural 
capital where possible. Policy RV1 of the same Plan outlines, inter alia, that 
major minerals and waste development in the South Downs National Park or 
High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty will be refused other than in 
exceptional circumstances, and where it can be demonstrated to be in the 
public interest. Under the terms of Policy RV1, it is considered that within the 
context of national policy, the winning and working of minerals and waste 

Page 37



development generally constitutes major development. It is also stated that 
other minerals and waste development which is ancillary to a main minerals 
and waste operation (e.g. weighbridge, offices, haul road and minor 
amendments) would not normally be considered as major development. As the 
application is largely seeking to improve the efficiency of the site and does not 
propose an increase in throughput, the development in this case is not 
considered to be major. The Policy identifies that small-scale waste facilities for 
local needs, the definition of which is considered to fit the proposed 
development, are not precluded from the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
where they meet the requirements of Policies RD1 and RW1.The Policy also 
suggests that proposals should provide details of, inter alia, any detrimental 
effect on the environment or landscape and the extent to which this could be 
moderated. 
 
6.7 Policy EN1 of the Rother Core Strategy states that management of the 
high quality historic, built and natural landscape character is to be achieved 
using the protection and, wherever possible, enhancement of the districts 
nationally designated and local distinctive landscapes and landscape features, 
including the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (now known as 
the High Weald National Landscape). Policy EN5 of the same Plan requires the 
protection and enhancement of biodiversity, geodiversity and green space by, 
inter alia, seeking to protect and enhance national and locally designated sites, 
having due regard for their status. Policy DEN1 of the Rother District 
Development and Site Allocations Local Plan states that the siting, layout and 
design should maintain and reinforce the natural and built landscape character 
of the area. In addition, Policy DEN2 of the same Plan states that all 
development within or affecting the setting of the High Weald AONB shall 
conserve and seek to enhance its landscape and scenic beauty, having 
particular regard to the impacts on its character components, as set out in the 
High Weald AONB Management Plan. 
 
6.8 As previously noted, the site lies with the High Weald National 
Landscape, with Maplehurst Wood, a Site of Special Scientific Interest, about 
90 metres distant. To help ensure any potentially negative impacts on the local 
landscape character and environment are appropriately mitigated, the applicant 
has proposed the implementation of a planting plan (Planting Proposals, 
Drawing No. 01, Rev 01, dated 25.10.2024, received 03.04.2025) and 
landscape management plan (Landscape Works Specification and Landscape 
Management Plan, dated 08.03.2025, received 03.04.2025). The plans 
propose the introduction of native planting to the west of the site, additional 
planting to the outer side of the existing 5m high noise bund as well as grass 
seeding (species rich grass mix) to the inside of the bund. It is understood that 
any existing vegetation will be retained and that on-going management regimes 
will be in place as detailed in this document, which will help to ensure the 
successful establishment of the any proposed planting. 
 
6.9 The Landscape Management Plan also details site clearance measures, 
including the removal of rubbish as well as a yearly maintenance schedule and 
protection measures including a restriction on any mechanical tools being used 
within 100mm of tree and plant stems. A tool store is proposed to the west of 

Page 38



the concrete pad, measuring 2.473m in height, 2.438m in width and 6.079m in 
length. An office (retrospective) and adjoining welfare unit are proposed to the 
north-west of the site measuring 2.4m in width and 6.15m in length and 2.0m in 
width and 3.5m in width respectively.  Both units are considered to have minimal 
visual impacts on the local landscape character, owing to the relatively small 
size of the units and taking into consideration the context of the units within the 
existing character of the site. Furthermore, the proposed planting and fencing 
should help to screen views of the units from the wider area and are therefore, 
deemed acceptable.  
 
6.10 The proposal includes the installation of 2m high chain fencing to the 
west of the site coloured dark green (RAL 6005). The installation of 2.4m high 
interlocking concrete blocks are also proposed to the north of the site on the 
northern, western and eastern perimeters of the concrete pad, serving to both 
contain waste within the boundaries of the site and provide additional 
screening. This will also be coloured dark green to help integrate into the 
landscape. Although not requiring planning permission, the proposal also seeks 
to repair the 2.4 high palisade fencing on the northern and southern boundaries, 
replacing any unrepairable areas with 2m high chain fencing where necessary.   
 
6.11 The County Landscape Architect has advised that subject to the 
implementation of the proposed planting plan, the proposal would not have 
significant adverse effects on local landscape and visual amenity in the context 
of the existing site, suggesting any effects from the site are localised and do not 
extend beyond the boundaries of the site. The site is also largely screened from 
public views by dense tree and scrub belt, with only glimpsed views from the 
adjacent road. To further minimise any impact upon the landscape, should 
permission be granted, it is recommended that suitably worded conditions 
require that no materials or equipment are stored within 2 metres of the site 
boundaries, that the boundaries of the site shall, at all times, remain free of 
material overspill and any associated litter, and in the event that any damage 
to existing vegetation is observed, like for like compensatory planting will be 
required. 
 
6.12 With regards to the introduction of household waste items to the site, 
whilst only a relatively small percentage of the total annual throughout, it is 
nonetheless acknowledged that if not managed properly the nature of this 
waste stream has the potential to create significant adverse impacts on the local 
landscape character and environment, particularly given the sensitive location 
of the site within the High Weald National Landscape. To help mitigate against 
any potential visual impacts, the applicant has proposed the use of a 
designated skip located on the concrete pad area. Any waste items classified 
as household waste shall only be stored in the designated skip. The location of 
this skip is required to remain solely within the area of the concrete pad at all 
times, to help prevent overspill into other areas of the site and protect visual 
amenity. Furthermore, the concrete pad and bays within it will be set back within 
the site and screened by boundary treatment.  Managing the household waste 
in this way should ensure that any detrimental impacts from managing an 
additional waste stream are minimised and considered negligible. In respect of 
materials stored within the area of the concrete pad, the applicant is also 

Page 39



required by condition to ensure no material stored within the designated bays 
shall exceed the 2.4m height of these bays, this is also the case for any material 
stored on the remainder of the concrete pad. Furthermore, any material stored 
in the designated storage areas elsewhere on the site, as specified on the Site 
Layout Plan, shall not exceed 6m in height and the applicant is required to 
ensure the installation of marker posts which will be used for the duration of the 
use and immediately replaced if damaged.  
 
6.13 The Ecological Impact Assessment (dated 15 March 2024) indicated that 
any habitats present within the site are of low biodiversity value, identifying that 
the site is regularly subject to continued usage as an active waste treatment 
and recycling centre. It was however also recognised that marginal features 
including woodland, scrub and tall herb areas have the potential to provide 
habitat as the site boundaries contribute to the biodiversity of the surrounding 
landscape. The report concluded that subject to the implementation of 
enhancement measures outlined in Table 7, the proposal would not have a 
significantly adverse impact on ecological features. Whilst it is acknowledged 
the proposal is exempt from BNG requirements, should permission be granted 
it is recommended that the applicant is required by condition to implement the 
enhancement measures outlined in the Ecological Impact Assessment 
submitted. These measures include planting of native shrub along the boundary 
between the active site areas and marginal woodland habitat, grassland 
seeding on eastern margins, however it is considered that this requirement has 
been captured in the proposed Planting Plan. Additional measures include the 
installation of log piles outside of the active footprint and approved bird and bat 
boxes within marginalised woodland.   
 
6.14 Overall, whilst the introduction of a small percentage of household waste 
is of concern, recommending refusal cannot reasonably be justified given the 
proposed mitigation measures and controls in place to manage any potentially 
adverse impacts. With various mitigation measures in place, which can be 
secured through planning conditions in the event that permission is granted, 
there is no evidence that demonstrates that the proposal will have landscape 
impacts over and above those already in place from the current use. It is 
therefore considered that when assessed within the context of the currently 
permitted use, the proposal is acceptable in terms of impacts on the High Weald 
National Landscape.   
 
Amenity 
 
6.15 With regards to protecting local amenity, Policy WMP25 of the East 
Sussex South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 
requires all proposals to have no unacceptable effect on the standard of 
amenity. The policy continues to require no significant adverse impacts on air 
quality or the local acoustic environment and the provision of adequate means 
of controlling noise, dust, litter, odours and other emissions. Policy DEN7 of the 
Rother District Council Development and Site Allocations Local Plan states that 
proposals must demonstrate that there will be no significant adverse impacts 
on health, local amenities, biodiversity or environmental character as a result 

Page 40



of lighting, noise, odour, land contamination, hazardous or non-hazardous 
substances associated with the development.  
 
6.16 With regard to noise, for the purpose of providing context, the extant 
permission restricts the use of equipment on site to one mobile concrete 
crusher, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Director of Communities, 
Economy and Transport. Conditions are currently in place under the extant 
permission to ensure any adverse noise impacts from the site are minimised, 
all of which will be either amended of carried over to any new permission 
granted. The proposal seeks permission to introduce new noise sources to the 
site namely: a screener, Air Separator, 360 loading shovel/ excavator and 
trommel, in addition to the existing mobile crusher.  
 
6.17 The Noise Impact Assessment submitted concluded that at the nearest 
noise sensitive receptor (NRS1), there is potential for adverse impacts to be felt 
from the use of the screener. It was therefore recommended that mitigation 
measures are implemented, which include fitting a polyurethane sieve plate and 
rubber isolators to the screener. Should permission be granted, a condition is 
recommended to secure these mitigation measures and also requires the 
regular maintenance of plant to ensure it is working optimally. Furthermore, the 
applicant will be required to continue to ensure the operational noise rating level 
shall, at all times, be no more than +5dB above the background noise levels, 
as determined at the nearest noise sensitive receptors.  The applicant is also 
required by condition to ensure that any crushing or screening activity is strictly 
limited to the times outlined in the condition, again, detailed later in this report. 
To further ensure the continued mitigation of any potentially adverse noise 
impacts, it is recommended that the applicant is required by condition to submit 
the results of an independent noise survey within 3 months of the site becoming 
fully operational. 
 
6.18 In terms of odour, it is acknowledged that as the proposal seeks to 
introduce a waste stream to the site, where there is an increased risk of odour, 
which will need to be adequately mitigated in order for the proposal to be 
deemed acceptable. The Odour Management Plan (dated 11 July) details 
several specific measures, monitoring practices and contingency plans to be 
implemented at the site. Such measures include ensuring that if any potentially 
odorous wastes, as specified in the document, are discovered they are to be 
stored in a sealed container as shown on the Site Layout Plan and removed 
from the site with 48 hours, or by the end of the working day if staff notice a 
detectable odour. The document also specifies that the residence times of 
waste stored in the tipping area as detailed in the Site Layout Plan shall be less 
than 24 hours, with all waste deposited in this area to be removed or processed 
before the end of the working day. Should any complaints be received the 
applicant is required to adhere to the procedures detailed in this document 
which includes completing an events log which will be kept for inspection on 
request by the County Council. The applicant is required by condition to adhere 
to the details contained within the Odour Management Plan, which will be 
reviewed bi-annually.  Should permission be granted, a condition would be 
required to ensure that household waste is stored only within the designated 
storage skip which is to remain, at all times, within the impermeable concrete 

Page 41



pad area. In light of these mitigation measures, it is considered that the risk of 
odour adversely affecting neighbouring properties is likely to be low and 
therefore, the proposal can be considered acceptable in this regard. 
 
6.19 Whilst the site does not lie within an Air Quality Management Area 
(AQMA) or Low Emissions Zone (LEZ), it is acknowledged that the proposed 
operations have potential to generate dust, which if not managed effectively, 
could have detrimental impacts on amenity and the surrounding environment. 
The site has been operating in line with a Risk Assessment submitted and 
subsequently approved under extant permission RR/700/CM. An updated Dust 
Environmental Management Plan (DEMP) has been submitted in support of this 
application. The document identifies potential causes of dust emissions, such 
as vehicle movements and loading, types of materials accepted into and 
subsequently stored or tipped within the site and use of plant, all of which can 
be affected by weather conditions.  Section 4 of this document details dust 
management and mitigation measures to be implemented within the site 
including (but not limited to): suppression measures such as dust cannon; use 
of attenuation bunding; controls on vehicle movements; wheel washdown area; 
minimising drop heights; effective storage of materials and attention to weather 
conditions considered to have the potential to impact dust generation on site. 
Should permission be granted, the applicant would be required by condition to 
adhere to the measures contained within the DEMP.  
 
6.20 In conclusion, it is acknowledged that the proposal has the potential to 
generate potentially adverse impacts on amenity including that of noise, dust 
and odour. However, with the existing and recommended conditions in place it 
is considered that any such impacts can be effectively mitigated. 
Notwithstanding this, the operations at the site will be subject to controls by the 
Environment Agency under the Environmental Permitting regime. It is therefore 
considered that, subject to the imposition of conditions attached to this report, 
the proposal is acceptable in terms of impacts on amenity.    
 
Traffic Impacts 
 
6.21 Policy WMP18 of the East Sussex South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 states that proposals should demonstrate, inter 
alia, how access to the strategic highway network is suitable and how impacts 
on road safety and congestion have been addressed. Policy TR4 of the Rother 
Core Strategy requires that the development shall, inter alia, have full regard to 
the potential for access by means other than the car, and to any safety, 
congestion or amenity impacts of a reliance on parking off-site whether on 
street or off-street.  
 
6.22 The access track serving the site runs along the northern boundary to 
the A28 Westfield Lane. This section of Westfield Lane is subject to a 40mph 
speed limit, changing to the national speed limit approximately 7 meters to the 
north of the access. A footway runs along the southern side of Westfield Lane 
connecting to Westfield Village to the north. The Transport Statement submitted 
as part of this application states that the existing visibility splays are 215 meters 
to the north and 81 meters to the south. The Statement identifies that these 

Page 42



have not changed since the original permission was granted (RR/700/CM) in 
2012 nor are there any proposed changes to the junction and as such considers 
that no further arrangements are required.  
 
6.23 The Supporting Statement submitted as part of this application details 
that the operation of the site is anticipated to generate little change in terms of 
HGV movements, which are currently unrestricted under the extant permission. 
The Statement specifies an anticipated average of 13 movements per day to a 
maximum of 18 (9 in and 9 out) with additional movements associated with staff 
and other ancillary movement generating between 30 and 40 daily movements. 
The Transport Statement submitted as part of this application states that the 
type of HGVs to be used are Hippo/ bag, Skip, Grab and Roll on Roll Off 
(RORO) Container, totalling an average of 12.4 daily movements. The 
Applicant has also provided a Swept Path plan detailing the proposed 
movement of vehicles within the site, which is considered acceptable.  
 
6.24 At consultation the Highways Authority raised no objection to the 
proposal, stating that the Authority has no major concerns that any increase in 
use of the access will exacerbate any existing highway safety issues. They 
recommended the imposition of two conditions requiring the provision of a 
parking area on site as well as ensuring the vehicle turning spaces as detailed 
in the approved Swept Path Drawing (drawing number 2555-004-07) always 
remains clear and free of obstruction to ensure the safety of vehicle 
movements. 
 
6.25 The letters of representation received at consultation raised concerns 
regarding a potential increase in vehicle movements as well as any impacts on 
users of the highway and adjoining footpath, particularly in low light. Concerns 
were also raised regarding the inappropriate parking on the accessway and the 
potential for this to increase congestion in the area. These concerns are 
acknowledged, however taking into consideration the consultation response 
received from the Highways Authority and that little change is likely compared 
to existing vehicle movements with the consented use, it is considered that the 
proposal will not significantly increase any traffic related impacts to those 
already experienced with the current use of the site. Nevertheless, it is 
understood that the nature of some of the vehicles required to access the site 
will likely change as a result of the proposed skip element, potentially increasing 
the frequency of smaller Light Good Vehicles (LGV’s) as a result. Given this, to 
ensure the effective mitigation of any traffic related impacts, it is recommended 
that the applicant is required by condition to ensure no more than 40 daily 
vehicle movements are recorded at the site. Highway impacts can also be 
mitigated by ensuring a designated vehicle washdown and inspection area is 
installed as per the approved Site Layout Plan submitted. With regards to the 
parking of vehicles along the access road, the responsibility to ensure this 
remains clear falls with the owner of the land and the applicant. The applicant 
is strongly reminded that any parking in this area should be appropriate and 
that the immediate access onto the highway should remain clear at all times, 
and informative is attached to this effect.   
 

Page 43



6.26 In conclusion, it is considered that the proposal does not give rise to any 
increase in adverse traffic related impacts that are over and above those 
resulting from the existing permitted use.  Further measures, through the 
imposition of conditions, can further minimise adverse traffic impacts and 
ensure that the proposal is deemed acceptable in terms on impacts on the 
Highway.  
 
Surface Water Drainage 
 
6.27 Policy WMP28a of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan states that development will only be permitted if it can 
be demonstrated that the proposal adequately provides for the implications of 
flood risk in that it would not increase the risk of flooding on the site or elsewhere 
and where possible reduce the risk of flooding overall. Policy WMP28b of the 
same Plan states that, inter alia, proposal must not cause changes to 
groundwater and surface water levels which would result in unacceptable 
impacts on adjoining land.  Policy SRM2 of the Rother Core Strategy requires 
development to ensure the effective management of water resources, ensuring 
that inter alia, sustainable drainage systems are in place to control the quantity 
and rate of run off as well as improve water quality where practicable.   
 
6.28 The site lies within Flood Zone 1 and is therefore deemed at low risk of 
flooding. To the south/ south east of the site lies a watercourse which flows 
through a SSSI, Maplehurst Wood, past the site to become Doleham Ditch 
before flowing to the River Brede.  
 
6.29 The Drainage Statement (dated 10 July 2025) details the proposed 
surface water strategy which includes the extension of an existing concrete pad 
to a to the north of the site, measuring a total of 725m2 in size. It is understood 
that this impermeable surface will be fully sealed and drained to a sealed 
30,000 litre above ground storage tank, which is understood to be alarmed to 
notify staff when it has reached 80% capacity. At which point, the effluent will 
be removed to a suitably permitted site. The document also proposes the 
installation of a 2,500-litre silt tank to the west of the impermeable area which 
will capture runoff from vehicles and also help prevent runoff out of the site 
during periods of heavy rainfall. It is understood that the tank will be monitored 
daily by staff and the contents will be removed, when required, using the same 
tanker for the impermeable effluent. No other impermeable surfaces are 
proposed on the remainder of the site which will continue to drain as per the 
details approved under the extant permission. 
 
6.30 The Lead Local Flood Authority has raised no objection to the proposal 
subject to conditions requiring the submission of detailed design for the 
drainage and storage of rainwater for the concrete pad, including details of the 
outfall of the proposed attenuation tank as well as a maintenance and 
management plan. Further comments considered that the proposal seeks to 
improve rainwater storage and therefore offers a net benefit in terms of surface 
water attenuation from the existing situation, which is largely reliant on 
infiltration.  
 

Page 44



6.31 In conclusion it is considered that the proposal will, on the whole, help to 
reduce runoff downstream and avoid effluent from the site entering adjoining 
drainage systems. The details contained within the Drainage Strategy are 
deemed acceptable in managing surface water run-off and conditions are 
recommended to ensure appropriate installation, management and 
maintenance of the system.  
 
7. Conclusion and reasons for approval 
 
7.1 In accordance with Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 the decision on this application should be taken in 
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 
 
7.2 It is considered that the proposal complies with Policies WMP3b, WMP6, 
WMP18, WMP25, WMP28a and WMP28b of the East Sussex South Downs 
and Brighton and Hove Waste and Minerals Local Plan 2013; Policies RV1,   
RM1 and  RD1 of the East Sussex South Downs and Brighton and Hove Waste 
and Minerals Local Plan Revised Policies 2024; Policies SRM2, EN1, EN5,  and 
TR4 (Car Parking) of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014 and Policies 
DEN1, DEN2, and DEN7 of the Rother District Council Development and Site 
Allocations Local Plan 2019.  
 
7.3 In determining this planning application, the County Council has worked 
with the applicant and agent in a positive and proactive manner. The Council 
has also sought views from consultees and neighbours and has considered 
these in preparing the recommendation. This approach has been taken 
positively and proactively in accordance with the requirement in the NPPF, and 
as set out in the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 
 
7.4 There are no other material considerations and the decision should be 
taken in accordance with the Development Plans.  
 
8. Recommendation 
 
8.1 To recommend the Planning Committee to grant planning permission 
subject to the following conditions:- 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
  
 Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the plans and documents listed in the Schedule of Approved Plans and 
Documents. 

  

Page 45



 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 
3. Within one month of the date of the permission hereby approved, the 

applicant is required to submit a timetable for the implementation of details 
contained within the schedule of approved plans and documents, for 
written approval to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport. 
Following approval, all works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
details contained within this document.  

 The document should include, but is not limited to, details pertinent to the 
following:  

  - Installation of concrete pad 
  - Installation of bays and associated concrete blocks 
  - Installation of drainage system 

- implementation of any landscaping, planting and biodiversity 
enhancements 

  - Installation of any planting 
  - Implementation of a wheel washing area 
  
 For the avoidance of doubt, all works required to bring the site into 

compliance with the Site Layout Plan shall be completed no later than 6 
months following the date on which this permission is granted, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport. 

   
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 

planning.   
  
4. Prior to the use of the concrete pad area as identified on the Site Layout 

Plan approved under this permission (RR/899/CM) an above-above 
ground 30,000l sealed tank shall be installed and be in operation, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing.   

   
 Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage of the site in accordance with 

Policy WLP28b of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 and Policy SRM2 of the Rother Local Plan 
Core Strategy.  

  
5. The site shall only be used for the purposes identified in the planning 

application, namely the importation, deposit, storage and processing of no 
more than 10,000 tonnes per annum of skip waste comprising 9, 500 
tonnes of construction, demolition and excavation waste and no more than 
500 tonnes of incidental items which may be classed as commercial, 
industrial and household waste under Waste Code 20 03 07. No 
putrescible or hazardous waste shall be permitted at the site. 

   
 Reason: In the interests of amenity of the locality in accordance with Policy 

WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste 
and Minerals Local Plan 2013 and to ensure the continued protection of 
the environment and amenity of the area as required under Policy RD1 of 

Page 46



the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan Revised Policies Document 2024. 

 
6. The site shall, at all times, operate in accordance with the details contained 

within the Odour Management Plan submitted and subsequently approved 
under this planning permission (RR/899/CM). Any rejected waste items 
shall be identified and stored within the sealed container identified on the 
approved Site Layout Plan accompanying this permission and legally 
disposed of as soon as practically possible.  

   
 Reason: For the interest of minimising the risk of odour on site and in 

accordance with Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and 
Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 and to ensure the 
continued protection of the environment and amenity of the area as 
required under Policy RD1 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton 
& Hove Waste and Minerals Plan Revised Policies Document 2024. 

  
7. Upon receipt, any waste items classified as household waste shall be 

stored in designated skip as specified on the approved Site Layout Plan 
only.  Sorting activities shall be undertaken in accordance with the details 
contained within the approved Odour Management Plan submitted which 
requires items to be sorted and stored on the same working day and in 
any case no longer than 24 hours. The designated area for skip storage 
must remain solely within the area of the concrete pad at all times.  

   
 Reason: In accordance with Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South 

Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 and to ensure 
the continued protection of the environment and amenity of the area as 
required under Policy RD1 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton 
& Hove Waste and Minerals Plan Revised Policies Document 2024.  

  
8. No waste management activities including the import and export of 

materials by vehicles shall be undertaken at the site except between the 
hours of 08.00 - 18.00 on Mondays to Fridays and 08.00 - 13.00 on 
Saturdays and there shall be no working on Sundays, Bank or Public 
Holidays.  

   
 Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy WMP25 of 

the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013 and to ensure the continued protection of the environment and 
amenity of the area as required under Policy RD1 of the East Sussex, 
South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan Revised 
Policies Document 2024. 

  
9. Notwithstanding the terms of condition 8 no crushing or screening of any 

sort shall take place at the site other than between the hours of 09.00 - 
16.00 on Mondays to Fridays only with no working on Saturdays, Sundays, 
Bank and Public Holidays. 

  

Page 47



 Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy WMP25 of 
the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013 and to ensure the continued protection of the environment and 
amenity of the area as required under Policy RD1 of the East Sussex, 
South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan Revised 
Policies Document 2024. 

  
10. The tool store and office/ welfare unit shall be constructed of white 

coloured metal containers and installed as per the details contained within 
the list of scheduled plans and document and shall be located as per the 
approved Site Layout Plan hereby approved. No other buildings or 
structures shall be installed on the site unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport.  

   
 Reason: To ensure the continued protection of the environment and 

amenity of the area as required under Policy RV1 of the East Sussex, 
South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan Revised 
Policies Document 2024, Policy DEN1 of the Rother District Council 
Development and Site Allocations Local Plan 2019 and Policy EN1 of the 
Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014.  

  
11. The 2.4m high palisade and chain link fencing panels and interlocking 

concrete blocks hereby permitted shall be coloured Dark Green (RAL 
6005), unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Director of Communities, 
Economy and Transport. 

   
 Reason: To integrate the boundary treatment into the local landscape and 

wider High Weald National Landscape in accordance with Policy RV1 of 
the East Sussex South Downs and Brighton and Hove Waste and Minerals 
Local Plan Revised Policies 2024, Policy DEN1 of the Rother District 
Council Development and Site Allocations Local Plan 2019 and Policy 
EN1 of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014.  

  
12. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Director of Communities, 

Economy and Transport, no machinery or equipment shall be used at the 
site except for those permitted under this application, as follows: 

  - One Terex Finlay 833 Screener 
  - One Terex TAS-150 Air separator.  
  - One Mobile Trommel  
  - One Terex 833+ Crusher 

- One 360 loading shovel/ excavator - JCB JS145 (excavator) and 
JCB 436 (loading shovel  

  
Use of this machinery shall be carried out in accordance with the Noise 
Impact Assessment approved under this application (RR/899/CM).  

   
 Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy WMP25 of 

the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013 and to ensure the continued protection of the environment and 
amenity of the area as required under Policy RD1 of the East Sussex, 

Page 48



South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan Revised 
Policies Document 2024. 

  
13. No material stored within the bays specified on the approved Site Layout 

Plan shall exceed the 2.4m height of these bays. Any material stored 
outside of the bays but within the concrete pad shall also not exceed 2.4m 
in height. Any material stored in the designated storage areas as specified 
on the Site Layout Plan shall not exceed 6m in height.  

   
 Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy WMP25 of 

the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013 and to ensure the continued protection of the environment and 
amenity of the area as required under Policy RD1 of the East Sussex, 
South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan Revised 
Policies Document 2024 Policy DEN1 of the Rother District Council 
Development and Site Allocations Local Plan 2019. 

  
14. Within one month of the date of this permission hereby granted, four 

marker posts shall be erected within the site (in specified locations) to 
identify the 6 metre materials height limit imposed in the designated 
storage areas. Those posts shall be retained for the duration of the use 
hereby approved and immediately replaced if lost or damaged. The 
approved scheme shall be implemented in full.  

   
 Reason: To enable the identification of the approved materials height limit 

in the interests of amenity and the landscape of the High Weald National 
Landscape in accordance with Policy  WMP25 of the East Sussex, South 
Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 and to ensure 
the continued protection of the environment and amenity of the area as 
required under Policy RD1 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton 
& Hove Waste and Minerals Plan Revised Policies Document 2024 and 
Policy DEN1 of the Rother District Council Development and Site 
Allocations Local Plan 2019. 

  
15. Any fuel, oil, lubricant and other potential pollutants shall be handled on 

the site in such a manner as to prevent pollution of any watercourse, 
wetland or aquifer. For any liquid other than water, this shall include 
storage in suitable tanks and containers which shall be housed in an area 
surrounded by bund walls of sufficient height and construction so as to 
contain the equivalent of 110% of the total contents of all containers and 
associated pipework. The floor and walls of the bunded areas shall be 
impervious to both oil and water. All pipes shall vent downwards into  the 
bund. 

   
 Reason: To protect the water environment from pollution in accordance 

with Policy WMP28b of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & 
Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013. 

  
16. In alignment with the Transport Assessment approved under this 

permission, no more than 40 daily vehicle movements (20 in and 20 out) 

Page 49



will be permitted at the site, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport.  This includes all 
business, staff and other ancillary movements. 

   
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety and amenity in accordance with 

Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan 2013. 

  
17. Within one month of the date of this permission, a designated vehicle 

washdown and inspection area shall be installed as per the approved Site 
Layout Plan (RR/899/CM). The washdown area shall be maintained and 
used on vehicles for the duration of the development. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety and amenity in accordance with 

Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 

  
18. Upon commencement of the development hereby approved, the approved 

Dust and Emissions Management Plan (RR/899/CM) shall be 
implemented in full for the lifetime of the development with associated 
equipment being maintained to ensure that best practicable means are 
taken to ensure that equipment is fit for purpose and in full working order.  

   
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety and amenity in accordance with 

Policy WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan 2013. 

  
19. Prior to the changes to the development taking place a parking area shall 

be provided in accordance with the approved plans/details which shall 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning 
Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority and the area shall 
thereafter be retained for that use.   

   
 Reason: To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles entering and 

leaving the access and proceeding along the highway.  
  
20. For the duration of the development, the vehicle turning spaces as detailed 

in approved drawing number 2555-004-07  shall remain clear and free of 
obstruction at all times  to ensure the safety of vehicle movements.  

 Reason: To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles entering and 
leaving the access and proceeding along the highway. 

  
21. The noise rating level emitted from the site at all times shall not exceed 43 

dB LAeq 1 hour (freefield) when measured in accordance with BS 
4142:1997 or equivalent at the Noise Sensitive Receptor A shown in 
Figure 4 of the Addendum Noise Report dated August 2012 under 
planning permission RR/700/CM and Figure 1 of the Materials Processing 
Facility Noise Assessment report dated September 2013 under planning 
application RR/724/CM. 

    

Page 50



 Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy WMP25 of 
the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013  

 
22. Any noise mitigation measures recommended in the approved Noise 

Impact Assessment (this includes fitting a polyurethane sieve plate and 
rubber isolators to the screener) shall be implemented before the new 
equipment is brought into operation, such measures shall be maintained 
at all times. 

   
 Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy WMP25 of 

the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013. 

  
23. The operational noise rating level shall, at all times, be no more than +5dB 

above the background noise levels, as determined at the nearest noise 
sensitive receptors and in accordance with the latest version of BS4142’. 

   
 Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy WMP25 of 

the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013 . 

  
24.  Within 3 months of the site becoming fully operational, the results of an 

independent noise survey shall be submitted to the Director of 
Communities, Economy and Transport for written approval.  Any additional 
mitigation measures that the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport  deems to be necessary in order to meet other relevant 
conditions detailed within this permission, shall be implemented with 
immediate effect.  

   
 Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy WMP25 of 

the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013.  

  
25. Prior to the use of the extended concrete pad hereby permitted, further 

details relating to drainage shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport. The details shall 
include the following:- 

  - Detailed design for the drainage and storage of rainwater for the 
concrete pad shall be provided. This will need to include construction 
details and a plan for managing water levels in the tank such that sufficient 
spare capacity if maintained at all times for a design storm of 1% AEP (100 
year return period) plus 45% Climate Change Allowance.  

  
- Details of the outfall of the proposed attenuation tank and how it is 
drained shall be provided as part of the design.  

     
 Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage of the site in accordance with 

Policy WLP28b of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 and Policy DEN5 of the Rother District 

Page 51



Council Development and Site Allocations Local Plan 2019 and Policy 
EN7 of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014. 

  
26. Details of the approved surface water drainage scheme as detailed in 

Condition 25 shall be implemented in full no later than 3 months following 
the date of planning permission being granted.  

   
 Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage of the site in accordance with 

Policy WLP28b of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 and Policy DEN5 of the Rother District 
Council Development and Site Allocations Local Plan 2019 and Policy 
EN7 of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014 

  
27. A maintenance and management plan for the drainage system as per the 

details required under conditions 25 and 26 shall be submitted for approval 
before any construction commences on site and shall be implemented for 
the lifetime of the development. 

   
 Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage of the site in accordance with 

Policy WLP28b of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan 2013 and Policy DEN5 of the Rother District 
Council Development and Site Allocations Local Plan 2019 and Policy 
EN7 of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014. 

  
28. The details contained within the approved Landscape Specification and 

Management Plan and Planting Proposals Plan (RR/899/CM) shall be 
implemented within the first suitable planting season following the date of 
this permission and maintained in full for the lifetime of the development.  

   
 Reason: to ensure the continued protection of the environment and 

amenity of the area and wider High Weald National Landscape as required 
under Policy RD1 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan Revised Policies Document 2024 as well as 
Policies EN1 and EN5 of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014 and 
Policy DEN2 of the Rother District Development and Site Allocations Plan 
2019. 

  
  
29. No materials or equipment shall be stored within 2 metres of the site 

boundaries. Furthermore, the boundaries of the site shall, at all times, 
remain free of material overspill and any associated litter. In the event that 
any damage to existing vegetation is observed, like for like compensatory 
planting will be required  

   
 Reason: To prevent overspill of materials into adjacent land and to ensure 

the continued protection of the environment and amenity of the area and 
wider High Weald National Landscape  as required under Policy RD1 of 
the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan Revised Policies Document 2024 as well as Policies EN1 and EN5 

Page 52



of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014 and Policy DEN2 of the 
Rother District Development and Site Allocations Plan 2019. 

  
30. Specifications and proposed locations of bird and bat boxes to be installed 

in accordance with the Ecological Impact Assessment hereby approved 
under this application, shall be submitted to the Director of Communities, 
Economy and Transport  no later than 3 months after the date upon which 
permission is granted.  

   
 Reason: to ensure the continued protection of the environment and 

amenity of the area and in the interests of the High Weald National 
Landscape as required under Policy RD1 of the East Sussex, South 
Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals Plan Revised Policies 
Document 2024 as well as Policies EN1 and EN5 of the Rother Local Plan 
Core Strategy 2014 and Policy DEN2 of the Rother District Development 
and Site Allocations Plan 2019 

  
31. No artificial external lighting, including floodlighting, shall be installed or 

used in relation to the development hereby permitted other than in 
accordance with details first submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport.  

   
 Reason: In the interests of amenity and the character and appearance of 

the area and High Weald National Landscape  in accordance with Policies 
WMP25 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste 
and Minerals Plan 2013 and Policy OSS4 of the Rother District Council 
Local Plan Core Strategy 2014 as well as Policies EN1 and EN5 of the 
Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014 and Policy DEN2 of the Rother 
District Development and Site Allocations Plan 2019 

  
INFORMATIVES 
 
1. Environmental permit  
  
 Please note that this development may require an environmental permit, 

a variation of an existing permit or an exception from an environmental 
permit from us.   

 Further information can be found on the gov.uk website –   
 https://www.gov.uk/topic/environmental-management/environmental-

permits    
  
 The Applicant must ensure that the operations at the site are in 

accordance with the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2016. The Applicant is advised to contact our National 
Customer Contact Centre on 03708 506 506 (Monday to Friday 8am to 
6pm) or by emailing enquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk for further 
permitting advice.  

  

Page 53



 Please note that the need for an environmental permit is separate to the 
need for planning permission. The granting of planning permission does 
not necessarily lead to the granting of a permit.  

  
2. Safe digging practices in accordance with HSE publication HSG47 

"Avoiding Danger from Underground Services" must be used to verify and 
establish the actual position of the mains, pipes, services and other 
apparatus on site before any mechanical plant is used. 

 
3. Applicant is reminded enforcement action will be taken will be taken in the 

event that the site does not comply with details agreed from the date on 
which the permission granted.  

 
4. The Highway Authority expects the parking and waiting of all the vehicles 

utilising the site to be managed at all times to ensure that there is no 
waiting or delays occurring on the main carriageway and furthermore, wish 
for the access onto Westfield Lane be free from parked vehicles.  

   
5. Based on the information available, this permission is considered to be 

one which will not require the approval of a biodiversity gain plan before 
development is begun because one or more of the statutory exemptions 
or transitional arrangements are considered to apply.  These can be found 
in the relevant legislation included in Schedule 14 of the Environment Act 
2021.  

 
6.  The applicant is reminded that, under the Conservation of Habitats and 

Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) and the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981 (as amended), it is an offence to (amongst other things): 
deliberately capture, disturb, injure, or kill great crested newts; damage or 
destroy a breeding or resting place; intentionally or recklessly obstruct 
access to a resting or sheltering place. Planning permission for a 
development does not provide a defence against prosecution under this 
legislation. Should great crested newts be found at any stage of the 
development works, then all works should cease, and a professional 
and/or suitably qualified and experienced ecologist (or Natural England) 
should be contacted for advice on any special precautions before 
continuing, including the need for a licence. 

 
7. The permitted site operations will enable the production of recycled 

aggregate to be sold from the site.  As such the site operator will be 
required to make annual returns (detailing sales production and capacity) 
to the minerals planning authority in respect of the Aggregate Monitoring 
survey. This information will then be collated and sent to the South East 
Aggregate Working Party on behalf of the Government. 

 
8. The applicant is reminded that the site will be monitored as part of the 

County Council's Site Monitoring Policy, to ensure operations at the site 
remain in compliance with the conditions attached to the planning 
permission hereby approved. 

 

Page 54



Schedule of Approved Plans and Documents 
 
2555-004-02 - Site Location Plan, Appendix 1 - Ecological Impact Assessment, 
Appendix 2a - Landscape Works Specification and Landscape Management 
Plan, Appendix 2b - Planting Proposals, Appendix 3 - Noise Impact 
Assessment, Appendix 5 - dust & Emissions Management Plan, Appendix 7 - 
Swept Path (Articulated Vehicle), Appendix 8 - Transport Assessment, 
Appendix 9 - Carbon Assessment, Ecoskips Supporting Statement Revised 11 
June 2025 , Revised site layout plan 2555 004 03 Plp (d) A1 (002), Appendix 4 
Drainage Statement V1.2 Amended 10 07 2025 (002), Appendix 6 Odour 
Management Plan V1.2 Amended 11 07 2025, Tool Shed 2555 004 08 Tse ( ) 
A4, 2555 004 09 Fencing Elevs ( ) A4 
 
 
RUPERT CLUBB 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
See Electronic case file RR/899/CM 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2025
	5 Variation of Condition 3 of planning permission LW/799/CM(EIA) to extend the hours of working. Fisher's Wharf, East Quay, Newhaven Port, Newhaven BN9 0BN - LW/896/CM
	Appendix 1

	6 Use of land for the importation, deposit, storage & processing for recycling and recovery of skip waste comprising construction, demolition and excavation waste, commercial and industrial, and household waste (part retrospective) including construction of new concrete hardstanding and storage bays. Hole Farm, Westfield Lane Westfield TN35 4SA For EcoSkip Waste & Recycling Ltd - RR/899/CM
	Appendix 1


